# ERIE COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER CORPORATION FEBRUARY 22, 2022 MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MEETING HELD VIA ZOOM

Present: Ronald Bennett (virtual), Reverend Mark Blue (virtual), Ronald A Chapin

(virtual), Anthony J. Colucci, III (virtually), Jonathan Dandes, Darby Fishkin (virtual), Kathleen Grimm, MD, Sharon Hanson, Michael Hoffert (virtual), Hon. John O'Donnell, Jennifer Persico, Thomas J. Quatroche, Eugenio Russi,

Michael Seaman, Benjamin Swanekamp

Excused: Bishop Michael Badger, Christian Johnson, James Lawicki, Christopher

O'Brien

Also

Present: Donna Brown (virtual), Peter Cutler (virtual), Andrew Davis, Joseph Giglia,

Susan Gonzalez (virtual), Donna Jones (virtual), Pamela Lee (virtual), Charlene Ludlow (virtual), Keith Lukasik (virtual), Brian Murray, MD (virtual), Jonathan Swiatkowski, James Turner (virtual), Karen Ziemianski

(virtual)

#### I. Call to Order:

The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.

#### II. Minutes

Upon a motion made by Jonathan Dandes and seconded by Michael Seaman, the minutes of the January 25, 2022 regular meeting of the Board of Directors were unanimously approved.

#### III. Action Items

Resolution of the Board of Director's Approving Items for Annual Review
Moved by Eugenio Russi and seconded by Sharon Hanson
Motion approved unanimously

Resolution Receiving and Filing Medical-Dental Staff Meeting Minutes for February

Moved by Jonathan Dandes and seconded by Sharon Hanson

Motion approved unanimously

Dr. Brian Murray presented the appointment of Yousef Soofi, MD as new Chief of Pathology and requested the board's approval. Moved by Michael Seaman and seconded by Kathleen Grimm, MD.

Motion approved unanimously.

#### VI. Reports from the Corporation's Leadership Team

#### **Chief Executive Officer and President**

Dr. Thomas Quatroche reported a sharp decrease in the number of COVID patients. Patient safety indicators reflected a positive month on the journey to zero harm and high reliability. Human experience scores are on par with the statewide benchmark. The number of left-without-being-seen for the past weekend was below five (5) percent.

Elective surgeries have resumed. Dr. Quatroche reported on several options being considered to financially assist the hospital. Jennifer Persico requested a dialogue about ALC patient challenges to the hospital. Discussion followed.

#### **Chief Financial Officer**

A summary of the preliminary financial results through January 31, 2022 was briefly reviewed and the full set of these materials are received and filed. Jonathan Swiatkowski included an update on the financial impact of COVID-19, funding relief efforts and the status of the ongoing audit.

#### V. Standing Committees

- a. **Executive Officers Committee:** Ms. Persico reported that the officer's continue to review and discuss the impact of the pandemic and the funds needed to stabilize the hospital.
- b. **Finance Committee:** Mr. Seaman had nothing further to add to the information given during Mr. Swiatkowski's presentation.
- c. **Buildings and Grounds Committee:** Ronald Bennett reported on the progress of current construction projects.
- d. **M/WBE Committee:** Kathleen Grimm reported that the committee is working hard to support the M/WBE initiative and meet statewide goals.
- e. **Quality Improvement and Patient Safety Committee:** Michael Hoffert had nothing further to report.

All reports except that of the Performance Improvement Committee are received and filed.

#### VI. Adjournment

Moved by Eugenio Seaman and seconded by Michael Seaman adjourn the Board of Directors meeting at 5:27 p.m.

Sharon L. Hanson Corporation Secretary

#### A Resolution of the Board of Directors Approving Items for Annual Review

Approved February 22, 2022

WHEREAS, pursuant to New York Public Authorities Law, Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the "Corporation") is required to annually review and approve its procurement guidelines, property disposal guidelines, investment policy, and mission statement (collectively, the "Items for Annual Review"); and

Whereas, the Governance Committee of the Board has reviewed the Items for Annual Review and wishes to recommend their approval to the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to approve the Items for Annual Review in the form presented;

Now, Therefore, the Board of Directors resolves as follows:

- 1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation approve the Items for Annual Review in the form presented.
- 2. The Corporation is authorized to do all things necessary and appropriate to effectuate this resolution.
  - 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Sharon L. Hanson

**Corporation Secretary** 

#### **MEMORANDUM**

To: ECMCC Board of Directors

FROM: Joseph T. Giglia, II, General Counsel

Subject: Policies requiring Board review

DATE: February 11, 2022

In accordance with New York Public Authorities Law, the ECMCC Board of Directors is required to review and approve a number of items on an annual basis. A summary of these items, attached to this correspondence and already reviewed and approved by the Governance Committee, is as follows:

- 1. **Disposal of Property Guidelines (pp. 3-8).** The current policy, governing the process and procedures under which ECMCC may dispose of property, was revised in March 2017, and remains compliant with current law. No further changes have been made.
- 2. **Investment Policy (pp. 9-31).** The policy, governing ECMCC's investment guidelines, objectives, and processes, was last revised by the Investment Committee and subsequently approved by the Board in March 2021. No further changes have been made.
- 3. **Mission Statement (pp. 32-33).** Adopted in 2015, no changes have been made to ECMCC's mission statement.
- 4. **Procurement Guidelines (pp. 34-60).** The guidelines, which set forth the processes under which ECMCC purchases goods and services, contain numerous revisions from the version approved in March 2020. Changes are reflected in redline, with the substantive changes as follows:
  - A. Clarification on specific instances of "sole source" procurements (Section III.G.4).
  - B. Clarification that the CEO's prior approval of emergency procurements applies only "when practicable", to account for emergent after-hours situations (Section III.G.5.c).
  - C. Additional information added to "Government Sources" exception to include statutory procedures for procuring from state and federal sources (Section III.G.10).

- D. Clarification that ECMCC may extend the term of a contract resulting from an RFP/IFB beyond its initial term (Section IV.H)
- E. Clarification on the MWBE goal plan (Section VII.B), reporting (Section VII.K), and waiver (Section VII.L) processes.
- F. Clarification throughout on the definitions of "construction" vs. "public works" and "competitive procurements" vs. "competitive bidding", based on New York law.

Please review the documents included with this correspondence in preparation for discussion and approval at the February 22 Board Meeting.

# ERIE COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER CORPORATION

# DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY GUIDELINES

Revised MARCH 28, 2017

#### ERIE COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER CORPORATION

#### DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY GUIDELINES

#### I. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

These Guidelines are adopted pursuant to the provisions Article 9, Title 5-A "Disposal of Property by Public Authorities" of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York. These Guidelines set forth Erie County Medical Center Corporation's ["ECMCC's"] operative policy and instructions regarding the use, awarding, monitoring and reporting of contracts for the disposal of property, and the designation of a Contracting Officer (hereinafter defined) who shall be responsible for ECMCC's compliance with, and enforcement of, the Guidelines.

These Guidelines shall be consistent with ECMCC's procurement contract guidelines, Article 10-C of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York [the "ECMCC Act"], Article 5-A of the General Municipal Law, New York Public Authorities Law Article 9, Title 5-A and other applicable law for the disposition of property.

#### II. DEFINITION OF TERMS

For purposes of these Guidelines, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

- a. "Contracting Officer" means the ECMCC employee as appointed by resolution of the ECMCC Board of Directors to be responsible for the disposition of property.
- b. "Dispose" or "disposal" means transfer of title or any other beneficial interest in personal or real property in accordance with these Guidelines.
- c. "ECMCC" shall mean Erie County Medical Center Corporation.
- d. "ECMCC Act" means Article 10-C of the New York Public Authorities Law.
- e. "Property" shall mean personal property in excess of five thousand dollars in value, real property, and any inchoate or other interest in such property, to the extent that such interest may be conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an interest securing a loan or other financial obligation of another party.

#### III. ANNUAL REVIEW, APPROVAL AND DISTRIBUTION

The Board of Directors shall annually review and approve these Guidelines, and any amendments thereto, by no later than March 31<sup>st</sup> each year. On or before March 31<sup>st</sup> each year, the Contracting Officer shall 1) file with the New York Office of the State Comptroller a copy of these Guidelines, as most recently approved by the Board of Directors, and 2) post on the ECMCC website a copy of these Guidelines, as most recently approved by the Board of Directors. A copy of the then-current Disposal of Property Guidelines shall be continuously maintained on the ECMCC website.

#### IV. CONTRACTING OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

<u>Section 1.</u> <u>Administration.</u> The ECMCC Contracting Officer shall be responsible for implementing these Guidelines and enforcing ECMCC's compliance therewith. In addition to the foregoing, the Contracting Officer shall be the person responsible for performing the following duties on behalf of ECMCC:

- a. maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all property under ECMCC's control;
- b. periodically inventory such property to determine which property shall be disposed of;
- c. produce a written report of such property in accordance with the requirements set forth below; and
- d. transfer or dispose of such property as promptly as possible in accordance with the procedures set forth below.

Section 2. <u>Publication.</u> In addition to his/her responsibilities under Article II above, the Contracting Officer shall publish, not less frequently than annually, a report listing all ECMCC property. Such report shall consist of a list and full description of all real and personal property disposed of during such period. The report shall contain the price received by ECMCC and the name of the purchaser for all such property sold by ECMCC during such period. The Contracting Officer shall deliver copies of such report to the State Comptroller, the Director of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services, and the New York State Legislature.

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Reporting.</u> The Contracting Officer shall report to the ECMCC Chief Financial Officer and shall provide such reports at such times and in such manner as may be requested by the Chief Financial Officer or the finance committee of the Board of Directors.

#### V. DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY

<u>Section 1.</u> <u>Supervision and Direction.</u> Except as otherwise provided herein, the Contracting Officer shall have supervision and direction over the disposition of ECMCC property.

Section 2. <u>Custody and Control</u>. The custody and control of the property of ECMCC, pending its disposition, and the disposal of such property, shall be performed by ECMCC or by the Commissioner of General Services when so authorized under New York Public Authorities Law Article 9, Title 5-A and these Guidelines.

Section 3. Method of Disposition. Except as otherwise provided herein, ECMCC may dispose of property for not less than the fair market value of such property by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit, or other property, with or without warranty, and upon such other terms and conditions as the Contracting Officer deems proper, and it may execute such documents for the transfer of title or other interest in property and take such other action as it deems necessary or proper to dispose of such property under the provisions of these Guidelines. Any property, including any interest therein, which because of its unique nature is not subject to fair market pricing, shall be disposed of only after an appraisal of the value of such property has been made by an independent appraiser and such appraisal is included in the record of the transaction. In engaging an appraiser, the Contracting Officer shall comply with ECMCC's procurement contract guidelines.

Sales by the Commissioner of General Services. When it shall be deemed advantageous to the State of New York, ECMCC may enter into an agreement with the Commissioner of General Services where he/she may dispose of ECMCC property under terms and conditions agreed to by ECMCC and the Commissioner of General Services. In disposing of any such property, the Commissioner of General Services shall be bound by the terms of New York Public Authorities Law Article 9, Title 5-A and in such instances, references therein to the contracting officer shall be deemed to refer to such commissioner.

<u>Section 5.</u> <u>Validity of Instruments</u>. A deed, bill of sale, lease, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of ECMCC, purporting to transfer title or any other interest in property of ECMCC under these Guidelines shall be conclusive evidence of compliance with the provisions of New York Public Authorities Law Article 9, Title 5-A concerning title or other interest of any bona fide grantee or transferee.

#### Section 6. Bids for Disposal.

Except as provided in Section 7 below, all disposals, or contracts for disposal, of property shall be made after publicly advertising for bids as follows:

- a. the Contracting Officer shall advertise for bids prior to disposal or contract for disposal of property by publishing notice thereof in at least one newspaper of general circulation, and the Contracting Officer shall have the discretion to advertise for bids through such additional methods, and on such terms and conditions as shall permit full and free competition consistent with the value and nature of the property;
- b. all bids shall be publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in the advertisement; and

c. the award shall be made with reasonable promptness by written notice from the Contracting Officer to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the invitation for bids, will be most advantageous to the state and ECMCC, price and other factors considered; provided, that all bids may be rejected when it is in the public interest to do so.

#### Section 7. Disposal by Negotiation; Explanatory Statement.

- a. Disposals and contracts for disposal of property may be negotiated or made by public auction without regard to Section 6 above, but subject to obtaining such competition as is feasible under the circumstances, if, in the opinion of the Contracting Officer:
  - the personal property involved is of a nature and quantity which, if disposed of under Section 6 above, would aversely affect the state or local market for such property, and the estimated fair market value of such property and other satisfactory terms of disposal can be obtained by negotiation;
  - 2) the fair market value of the property does not exceed fifteen thousand dollars;
  - 3) bid prices after advertising therefor are not reasonable, either as to all or some part of the property, or have not been independently arrived at in open competition;
  - 4) the disposal will be to the state or any political subdivision, and the estimated fair market value of the property and other satisfactory terms of disposal are obtained by negotiation;
  - the disposal is for an amount less than the estimated fair market value of the property, the terms of such disposal are obtained by public auction or negotiation, the disposal of the property is intended to further the public health, safety or welfare or an economic development interest of the state or a political subdivision (to include but not limited to, the prevention or remediation of a substantial threat to public health or safety, the creation or retention of a substantial number of job opportunities, or the creation or retention of a substantial source of revenues, or where the ECMMC Act permits), the purpose and the terms of such disposal are documented in writing by the Contracting Officer and approved by resolution of the ECMCC Board of Directors; or
  - 6) such action is otherwise authorized by applicable law.
- b. The Contracting Officer shall prepare an explanatory statement describing the

circumstances of each disposal by negotiation of any of the following:

- 1) any personal property which has an estimated fair market value in excess of fifteen thousand dollars;
- any real property that has an estimated fair market value in excess of one hundred thousand dollars, except that any real property disposed of by lease or exchange shall only be subject to paragraphs 3 and 4 of this subparagraph;
- any real property disposed of by lease for a term of five years or less, if the estimated fair annual rent is in excess of one hundred thousand dollars for any of such years;
- 4) any real property disposed of by lease for a term of more than five years, if the total estimated rent over the term of the lease is in excess of one hundred thousand dollars; or
- 5) any real property or real and related personal property disposed of by exchange, regardless of value, or any property, any part of the consideration for which is real property.

Each such statement shall be transmitted to the State Comptroller, the Director of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services, and the New York State Legislature not less than ninety days in advance of such disposal, and a copy thereof shall be preserved in the files of ECMCC.

### **Erie County Medical Center Corporation**

#### **Statement of Investment Policy and Guidelines**

Drafted: December 12, 2006 Revised: April 15, 2014

> December 2014 September 2015 October 2016 December 2019 March 2020 March 2021

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INTRODUCTION	1
II.	GENERAL INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND OBJECTIVES	1
III.	DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES	2
IV.	ADMINISTRATION AND REPORTING	6
V.	INVESTMENT MANAGER SELECTION AND GUIDELINES	8
VI.	INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT	9
VII.	ALLOWABLE AND PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS	9
	APPENDIX A: FUND OBJECTIVES AND CONSTRAINTS	
	NYS RETIREMENT RESERVE FUND	
	CAPITAL RESERVE FUND	14
	RETIREE HEALTH RESERVE FUND	15
	W/C PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RESERVE FUND	16
	GENERAL DEPOSITORY & GENERAL OPERATING RESERVE	17
	DEBT SERVICE AND DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS	18
	GNMA BOND RESERVE FUND	
	APPENDIX B: FUND ALLOCATIONS AND BENCHMARKS	20
	APPENDIX C: DESIGNATED PARTIES AND PRIMARY CONTACTS	21

#### I. INTRODUCTION

In accordance with Public Authorities Law §2925 and its associated regulations, Public Authorities Law § 3636, and the Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities issued by the New York State Comptroller, an investment program involving public funds must include four basic ingredients – legality, safety, liquidity and reasonable return.

It is the responsibility of each public authority to determine and evaluate its own risk in all its investment transactions with due regard to prudent business principles and practices and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a knowledgeable and prudent investor would act. The financial resources of the public authority should be properly managed to achieve investment income consistent with sound investment practice.

This document defines the investment policies, objectives, and guidelines applicable to the Erie County Medical Center Corporation's ("Corporation") Investment Funds. It was developed by the Corporation's Investment Committee ("Committee") in conjunction with its Investment Management Consultant.

The purpose of this document is threefold. First, it will constitute the investment plan for these assets. Second, it will serve as a communication tool between the Committee and its investment manager(s). Third, these guidelines will provide a framework to measure the ongoing progress of the recommended structure, and as such should be reviewed annually and revised as necessary to reflect changes in available investment opportunities and market conditions or as a result of any recommendations from the periodic evaluation of the performance of the investment program or any audits of the investment program.

#### II. GENERAL INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND OBJECTIVES

#### **General Investment Return Objective**

The long-term objective of the Corporation's Investment Funds is to generate returns which are sufficient to meet current and expected future financial requirements. To accomplish this, the Corporation seeks to earn the greatest total return possible, consistent within its general risk tolerance, eligible asset classes, and asset allocation strategies outlined in this document.

#### **General Investment Risk Objective**

Permanent loss of capital is the most significant risk to achievement of the Funds' objectives. The Committee will seek to avoid such losses through a robust approach to risk assessment. Risk considerations will be viewed from a total portfolio perspective rather than at the individual investment level.

Risk tolerance can be defined by the *ability* and *willingness* to take risk. Several factors influence the ability to take risk, including the Investment Funds' purpose, time horizon, liquidity needs, and any other unique factors such as their effect on organizational debt covenants, where applicable. Variables that affect the Corporation's willingness to take risk include market or economic conditions, valuation and interest rate levels, and the Corporation's strategic plans or operating environment.

It is recognized that volatility is a widely-used measure of risk in the short term and that market fluctuations may result in varying levels of interim performance. It is expected that volatility will be managed through specific asset allocation strategies and diversification based upon the appropriate investment time horizon. Diversification shall exist at multiple levels of the investment program, including asset class, sub-asset class, risk factor, investment manager type, and underlying exposures of each investment manager (e.g. prudent levels of sector and company/issuer diversification).

#### **Asset Allocation Process**

It is recognized that asset allocation is a key determinant of investment return variability. The Committee expects the asset allocation policies to reflect and be consistent with the investment objectives and risk tolerances expressed throughout this document. These policies are designed to increase the likelihood of achieving return objectives over a full market cycle and within acceptable risk parameters.

The Investment Committee and Management, with assistance from the Investment Management Consultant, shall engage in a thorough process to determine appropriate policy asset allocations for the Funds. The Investment Management Consultant shall recommend a policy asset allocation for each Fund and formulate forward-looking return and volatility projections based on its capital markets expectations.

Individual Fund objectives and constraints that serve as key inputs to determining policy asset allocation can be found in Appendix A of this document.

#### **Performance Evaluation**

Total Fund performance against objectives shall be viewed from a long-term perspective, generally a full market cycle (approximately 7+ years). This can be augmented with comparisons over rolling periods such as 3 or 5 years. The investment performance of the Funds, as well as their asset class components, shall be measured against commonly accepted performance benchmarks as shown in the Appendix B.

#### **Permissible Investments**

The asset allocation of the Funds is expected to include a wide range of asset classes. The addition or removal of asset classes will necessitate deliberation by the Investment Committee, Management, and Investment Consultant regarding the merits of an asset class from an organizational and total portfolio context. A list of asset classes currently included in the Corporation's Fund allocations can be found in Appendix B.

#### III. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES

#### **Board of Directors and Investment Committee**

The Board of Directors is charged by law with the responsibility for the management of the assets of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall discharge its duties solely in the interest of the Corporation, with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing. In this regard, the Board of Directors, the Investment Committee, and Corporation management shall invest and manage Corporation funds as a prudent investor would, by considering the purposes, terms and other circumstances of the funds in the Corporation's care and by pursuing an overall investment strategy reasonably suited to the Corporation, and they shall require the same standard of prudence from investment managers and consultants they engage to assist them.

Within the broad framework of policy set by the Board of Directors, the Investment Committee shall have direct responsibility for the oversight and management of the invested assets of the Corporation and for the establishment of investment policies and procedures. Such oversight shall include:

- A. Establishing reasonable and consistent investment objectives, policies and guidelines which will direct the investment of the Corporation's assets.
- B. Determining the Corporation's risk tolerance and investment horizon and communicating these to the appropriate parties.

- C. Designating an appropriate Corporation individual as "Investment Officer" whose responsibility it will be to proscribe and maintain a control structure to protect investment assets from loss, theft, and misuse.
- D. Developing and enacting proper control procedures (for example, replacing Investment Manager(s) due to fundamental change in investment management process, or failure to comply with established guidelines).
- E. Advising and communicating with the Board of Directors as necessary with respect to investment matters.
- F. Recommending to the Board of Directors proposed changes and revisions to this Investment Policy.
- G. Reviewing any independent audits of the investment program if requested to do so by the Corporation's Audit Committee.
- H. Prudently and diligently selecting qualified investment professionals in compliance with the Corporation's procurement requirements, including Investment Management Consultants, Investment Managers, and Custodians. Additional specialists such as attorneys, auditors, and others may be employed by the Board of Directors, acting on its own or through its Investment Committee, to assist in meeting its responsibilities and obligations to administer Corporation assets prudently.
- I. Regularly evaluating the performance of the Investment Manager(s) to assure adherence to policy guidelines and monitoring investment objective progress.

#### **Responsibilities of the Investment Managers**

#### Investment Manager

The Corporation enters into agreements with selected investment managers who provide day-to-day investment management services to the Corporation. Each investment manager will have discretion to purchase, sell or hold the specific securities that will be used to meet the Corporation's investment objectives. Such appointments do not relieve the Committee from the responsibilities of overseeing the investment program.

#### Adherence to Investment guidelines

The investments are to be managed in accordance with the guidelines expressed herein, or expressed by separate written instructions, when deviation is deemed prudent and desirable by the Investment Committee. Written instructions amending this document must be authorized by the Investment Committee of the Board (Committee) and should be communicated through the Chief Investment Officer.

#### Discretionary Authority

The Investment Managers are expected to exercise complete investment discretion within the boundaries of the restrictions outlined in this Statement of Investment Policy and Guidelines.

Such discretion includes decisions to buy, hold, or sell equity or fixed-income securities (including cash equivalents) in amounts and proportions reflective of each manager's current investment strategy. However, the Committee is aware that its decision to invest in a commingled account and/or mutual fund may relieve the manager from strict adherence to all elements of the policy. In such case, the manager's strategy shall be dictated by its fund prospectus or other relevant governing documents.

#### Realized Gains/Losses

In addition to investment income, fiscal year net realized gains/losses are an important element of the Corporation's budgeting process. Specifically, the Corporation requires that its investment managers communicate, in advance, any intentions to realize fiscal year losses in excess of \$250,000.

#### Reporting

The Investment Managers shall provide, on a timely basis, quarterly reports containing portfolio activity, valuations at market, and quarterly strategy updates.

#### Compliance with Prudency and Diversification Measures

As a fiduciary, each investment manager is expected to diversify the portfolio to minimize the risk of large losses. The manager is expected to invest the assets with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing. In this regard, the manager shall invest and manage Corporation funds as a prudent investor would, by considering the purposes, terms and other circumstances of the funds in the Corporation's care and by pursuing an overall investment strategy reasonably suited to the Corporation. Furthermore, the investment manager is expected to acknowledge its intention to comply with the Statement of Investment Policy and Guidelines as it currently exists or as modified by the Committee in the future.

#### Responsibilities of the Trustee / Custodian

The Trustee/Custodian will be selected by the Investment Committee and will provide full custodian services. It will maintain possession of securities owned by the Corporation, collect dividend and interest payments, and redeem maturing securities, and effect receipt and delivery following purchases and sales. The Trustee/Custodian may also perform regular accounting of assets owned, purchased, or sold, as well as movement of assets into and out of the Corporation accounts. In addition, the custodian will provide monthly documentation of portfolio activity and portfolio value.

The Trustee/Custodian is responsible for the safekeeping of Corporation assets, assuring protection from loss, theft or misuse, and timely/reliable auditing of earnings and transactions. Specific responsibilities of the Trustee/Custodian include:

- 1. Maintaining possession of securities owned by the Corporation, collecting dividend and interest payments, redeeming maturing securities, and effecting receipt and delivery following purchases and sales.
- 2. Performing regular accounting of assets owned, purchased, or sold, as well as movement of assets into and out of the Corporation accounts.
- 3. Providing monthly documentation of portfolio activity and portfolio value.
- 4. Furnishing to the Corporation's Investment Officer a copy of its "SSAE 16 Report" from its independent auditors on an annual basis.

#### Safekeeping Accounts

Securities purchased should be delivered against payment and held in a custodian safekeeping account in investment accounts segregated from the custodian's own assets.

#### Collateralization

As it pertains to demand deposits, time deposits, or certificates of deposit, the Corporation will seek to ensure New York State Public Authorities collateralization guidelines are followed for such assets through its relationship with custodial banking institutions. Given the nature of vehicles utilized in the Corporation's investment portfolios (i.e. pooled funds), it is not anticipated that collateralization guidelines shall apply to such funds. However, in the event it is deemed necessary that any of the Corporation's investment assets shall be collateralized, the Corporation shall ensure compliance.

#### Responsibilities of the Investment Management Consultant

#### Generally

The Investment Management Consultant may assist the Investment Committee in: establishing investment policy, objectives, and guidelines, including investment time horizon risk tolerance and total return objectives; selecting one or more investment managers; reviewing and evaluating such manager's performance over time; measuring and evaluating investment performance; and other tasks as deemed appropriate.

The Investment Management Consultant's role is to provide investment advice to the Investment Committee concerning the investment management of Corporation assets. Such advice will be consistent with the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and constraints as established in this statement. Specific responsibilities of the Investment Consultant include:

- 1. Assisting in the development and periodic review of investment policy, objectives, risk tolerance, and guidelines and making recommendations to the Committee.
- 2. Conducting investment manager searches where appropriate and making recommendations as required.
- 3. Monitoring the performance of the Investment Manager(s) and providing the Committee periodic reports so that it may determine the Corporation's progress toward its investment objectives and adherence to its investment program compliance.
- 4. Monitoring the total fees, commissions, and other charges paid in rendering investment services to the Corporation, at least annually.
- 5. Communicating matters of policy, manager research, and manager performance to the Committee and making recommendations where appropriate.
- 6. Reviewing Corporation investment history, historical capital markets performance and the contents of this investment policy statement with any newly appointed members of the Committee.
- 7. Providing "due diligence" on investment managers such as any qualitative change to investment management organizations: Examples include changes in portfolio management personnel, ownership structure, investment philosophy, etc.
- 8. Providing current Statement of Investment Policy and Guidelines to existing, replacement and additional Investment Managers when changes occur. This applies to any strategy with a separately-managed account (SMA) format and excludes commingled formats such as mutual funds.
- 9. Maintaining timely and appropriate communications with the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Chairman of the Committee relative to matters of substance regarding:
  - A. Changes in investment forecast, investment strategies, or changes in portfolio structure;
  - B. Changes in ownership, organization, financial conditions, and key personnel within the investment management organization.

#### Communication

The Committee encourages, and the Investment Management Consultant is responsible for, frequent and open communication with the Committee on all significant matters pertaining to the

investment of the Corporation's assets. These communications would generally be addressed to the Chief Investment Officer. In this manner, the Consultant will advise the Committee of any major changes in investment outlook, investment strategy, asset allocation, portfolio structure, market value of the investments, managers and other substantive matters affecting the assets under their advisement. The Consultant will advise the Committee promptly of any significant changes in the ownership, organization structure, financial condition, or senior personnel of their organization.

All documents, exhibits, and other written material, etc., which will be used during review meetings between the Committee and the Consultant, should be submitted to the Committee, at least one week in advance of these meetings. It is expected that these meetings will take place periodically at the Committee's direction.

The Committee recognizes that the Statement of Investment Policy and Guidelines requires periodic re-examination and perhaps revision if it is to continue to serve as a working document to encourage effective investment management. Whenever the Consultant believes that the Statement should be altered, it is the responsibility of the Consultant to initiate written communication with the Committee through the Chief Investment Officer.

#### IV. ADMINISTRATION AND REPORTING

#### **Policy Review**

This document shall be reviewed by the Investment Committee annually and the results of the review reported to the Board of Directors.

#### **Portfolio Rebalancing**

Since asset allocation is the most critical component of portfolio returns, it is desirable to rebalance when necessary to minimize deviations from policy allocations.

The Funds shall be rebalanced in the event any individual asset class allocation differs from its policy by more than 20% of the target weight, but with a minimum deviation threshold of 2% of the total portfolio value. For example, if the policy asset allocation for an asset class is 20% of the total portfolio, then the portfolio's actual asset allocation must be below 16% or above 24% before rebalancing is required (20% rule). If, however, the policy asset allocation for an asset class is 3% of the total portfolio, then the portfolio's actual allocation must be either below 1% or above 5% before rebalancing is required (2% rule). This approach is designed to keep the portfolios reasonably in line with their target policies while avoiding excessive rebalancing.

This rebalancing policy may be suspended or altered based on assessment of market, operational, or other relevant considerations subject to Investment Committee approval.

The Investment Management Consultant shall be responsible for making rebalancing recommendations to Management who, in turn, shall be responsible for providing the necessary instructions to the Custodian. Investment Committee approval is not required. From time-to-time, it may be deemed appropriate to forego portfolio rebalancing.

#### **Compliance with the Law**

All actions undertaken or contemplated by this document shall follow appropriate law and applicable state statutes.

#### **Annual Investment Reporting**

The Corporation shall submit an annual investment report to the Division of the Budget with copies to the Office of the State Comptroller, the Senate Finance Committee, and the Assembly Ways and Means Committee. Such report shall include:

- 1. Investment guidelines and any amendments to such guidelines since the last investment report;
- 2. An explanation of the investment guidelines and amendments;
- 3. The results of the annual independent audit;
- 4. The investment income record of the Corporation; and
- 5. A list of total fees, commissions or other charges paid to each investment banker, broker, agent, dealer and advisor rendering investment associated services to the Corporation since the last investment report.

#### **Conflicts of Interest**

All persons responsible for investment decisions or who are involved in the management of the portfolios or who are consulting to, or providing any advice or service whatsoever to Corporation's Investment Funds shall disclose in writing at the beginning of any discussion or consideration by the Investment Committee, any relationships, material beneficial ownership, or other material interest(s) which the person has or may reasonably be expected to have, with respect to any investment issue under consideration. The Investment Committee may require such persons to remove themselves from the decision-making process.

#### **Operating Procedures**

Investments should be made in accordance with the following Operating Procedures:

- 1. The investment selection process should utilize competitive quotations or negotiated prices, except in the purchase of government securities at their initial value.
- 2. Each disbursement of funds (and corresponding receipt and securities) or delivery of securities (and corresponding receipt of funds) should be based upon proper written authorization. If the authorization is initially given verbally, there should be written or telegraphic confirmation from the Investment Officer to the Custodian.
- 3. Payment of funds should only be made upon delivery of securities. Written confirmation of delivery should be obtained from the Custodian.
- 4. The process of initiating, reviewing and approving requests to buy and sell investments should be documented and retained for audit purpose. Dealer limits should be established and reviewed regularly.
- 5. Custodians must have prior authorization from ECMCC to deliver obligations and collateral. All transactions must be confirmed in writing to the authority. Delivery of obligations sold should only be made upon receipt of funds.
- Custodial banks should be required to report whenever activity has occurred in ECMCC's custodial account.
- 7. There should be at least monthly verifications of both the principal amount and the market values of all investments and collateral. Appropriate listings should be obtained from the Custodian and compared against ECMCC's records.

A record of investments shall be maintained by the Investment officer. The records should identify the security, the fund for which held, the place where kept, date of disposition and amount realized and the market value and custodian of collateral.

#### **Annual Independent Audits**

ECMCC shall require an annual independent audit of all investments. The annual investment audit:

- 1. shall determine whether: ECMCC complies with its own investment policies; investment assets are adequately safeguarded; adequate accounts and records are maintained which accurately reflect all transactions and report on the disposition of authority investment assets; and a system of adequate internal controls is maintained;
- 2. shall determine whether ECMCC complied with the applicable laws, regulations and State Comptroller's Investment Guidelines; and
- 3. should be designed to the extent practical to satisfy both the common interests of ECMCC and the public officials accountable to others.

A written audit report should be prepared presenting the results of the annual independent audit of all investments and should include:

- 1. a description of the scope and objectives of the audit;
- 2. a statement that the audit was made in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards;
- 3. a description of any material weaknesses found in the internal controls;
- 4. a description of all non-compliance with the authority's own investment policies as well as applicable laws, regulations and the State Comptroller's Investment Guidelines;
- 5. a statement of positive assurance of compliance on the items tested and negative assurance on those items not tested; and
- 6. a statement on any other material deficiency or finding identified during the audit not covered in (5) above.

The audit report shall be filed within 90 days after the close of the authority's fiscal year with the Coordinator of Public Authority Programs, Office of the State Comptroller, A.E. Smith Office Building, Albany, New York, 12236.

#### V. INVESTMENT MANAGER SELECTION AND GUIDELINES

#### **Investment Manager Selection**

The selection of Investment Managers must be based on prudent due diligence procedures and, when applicable, the Corporation's procurement requirements. Each Investment Manager must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 as Registered Investment Advisors or documented as exempt by the same laws.

The Investment Management Consultant shall assist in establishing criteria and identifying suitable candidates, which shall be periodically presented for the Investment Committee's consideration. At a minimum, selection criteria will include historical risk and return, correlation to asset class and investment style, experience of investment professionals, depth of research capability, strength of investment process, diversification of portfolios, assets under management, and consideration of the investment manager as a going concern. Applying these criteria, the Investment Committee shall establish an approved list of Investment Managers on a periodic basis.

#### **Investment Manager Contracts and Guidelines**

The Corporation intends to use the investment manager guidelines set forth in this document as a framework to help the Investment Managers achieve their investment objectives at a level of risk deemed acceptable. The policies and restrictions are designed to minimize interfering with Investment Managers' efforts to attain overall objectives and to minimize excluding them from appropriate investment objectives. This document allows the Investment Managers discretion over the diversification of assets for the purposes of increasing investment returns and/or reducing risk exposure. When appropriate, Investment Managers are given responsibility to shift the allocation of assets among industry sectors and individual securities to pursue opportunities presented by changes within the capital markets.

For mutual fund, commingled trust, partnership, or any other non-separately-managed account structure, it is recognized that such vehicles will invest according to the strategy outlined in their prospectus or any other relevant fund documentation. Thus, it is incumbent upon the Corporation, with assistance from the Investment Management Consultant, to ensure comfort with underlying investments in those vehicle types. For these types of pooled investment vehicles, it may not be practical to have a written contract between the Corporation and Investment Manager. Rather, it is expected that execution of subscription documents, limited partnership agreements, or any other relevant documentation will serve to secure the Corporation's financial interest in an Investment Manager's strategy. In addition, for purchase of mutual fund shares it is expected that the Trustee / Custodian will document the Corporation's financial interest in an Investment Manager's strategy while executing its duties.

For separately-managed account structures (SMAs), specific restrictions for an Investment Manager shall be identified in the Investment Management Agreement or other governing document for the account. In addition, the Investment Manager shall maintain procedures sufficient to secure the Corporation's financial interest in an investment, including, where applicable, appropriate collateral requirements. SMA Investment Managers shall also acknowledge receipt of this IPS in writing.

#### VI. INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The performance for each Investment Manager shall be reported and measured against commonly accepted performance benchmarks as shown in Appendix B. It is expected that Investment Managers with actively-managed strategies shall outperform their benchmarks on an absolute and/or risk-adjusted basis over meaningful time frames, preferably full market cycles. For functional purposes, full market cycles are defined as seven years or longer. In addition, it is preferred that such Investment Managers rank favorably within an applicable peer universe over meaningful time frames such as rolling 3- to 5-year periods. While not the sole determinant, if an active manager exhibits underperformance over a full market cycle, its inclusion in the portfolio(s) shall be revisited along with the merits of active management within the manager's asset class, in general.

As mentioned above, when considering removal of an Investment Manager, performance shall not be the sole determinant. Rather, it shall be based upon a more comprehensive review including an understanding of the reasons for underperformance, continued suitability within the portfolio, and whether or not better options exist.

#### VII. ALLOWABLE AND PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

For mutual fund, commingled trust, partnership, or any other non-separately-managed account structure, it is recognized that such vehicles will invest according to the strategy outlined in their prospectus or any other relevant fund documentation. Thus, it is incumbent upon the Investment Committee, with assistance from the Investment Management Consultant, to ensure comfort with underlying investments in those vehicle types.

For separately-managed account structures (SMAs), specific guidelines for investment managers are outlined below.

#### **Allowable Investments**

#### A. Fixed Income and Cash Equivalents

#### 1. Instruments and Credit Quality

- a. Instruments issued and fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government or any of its agencies and instrumentalities.
- b. Instruments issued by domestic corporations, including corporate notes and floating rate notes, must be rated "Baa"/"BBB" or better at time of purchase by Moody's Investor Service or Standard and Poor's. Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations must be rated "Aaa"/"AAA" by the rating agencies. If the domestic corporation has a senior debt rating of "Baa" or better, the issuer's commercial paper rating and/or CD rating must be one of "A1", "P1", or "F1". If the issuer does not have a senior debt rating, the issuer's commercial paper rating and/or CD rating must be any two of "A1", "P1", "F1" or have a letter of credit drawn on the issuer, meeting the above guidelines.
- c. Obligations of domestic banks, including banker's acceptances, certificates of deposit, time deposits, notes, and other debt instruments.
- d. Instruments of countries or foreign corporations rated at least "Aa"/"AA" by appropriate rating organization. Instruments issued by the U.S. agency of a foreign corporation are also permitted, subject to the same quality constraints. Instruments referred to in this section cannot comprise more than 20% of the total combined portfolio, at market.
- e. The following types of Euro issues: banker's acceptances, time deposits, bonds, and floating rate notes of any issue rated "Aa"/"AA" or better by Standard and Poor's or Moody's.
- f. Yankee securities are subject to the quality constraints outlined in section "d" above.
- g. Securities resold under SEC Rule 144A subject to the quality constraints outlined in section "b" above.
- h. Repurchase Agreements are permitted with such government dealers who have and maintain a minimum equity value of \$50 million, as the investment manager shall, in its discretion, determine from time to time. Repurchase Agreements shall be subject to: 102% initial market value collateralization of the loaned amount, collateral market value is priced daily and always maintained above 100% of the loaned amount, and physical custody must be taken by the custodial bank in the form of direct obligations of the United States Government.
- i. This guideline is intended to give the investment manager sufficient latitude to periodically take advantage of bond-quality yield spreads. The average cost-weighted quality shall be no less than 3.0 based on the following scale:

U.S. Government and Agencies	5.0
Aaa Bonds	4.0
Aa Bonds	3.0
A Bonds	2.0
Baa Bonds	1.0

#### 2. Maturity

#### a. Cash Equivalent Manager

The weighted average maturity of the fund is at the discretion of the investment manager, however, no instrument may have a maturity greater than eighteen months. Issues with maturities greater than six months may not exceed 25% of the value of the portfolio:

- (1) Floating rate issues may have a longer maturity if the interest adjustment is based on an instrument with an effective maturity of less than six months.
- (2) A putable bond may be utilized if the put can be exercised within six months.
- (3) An asset-backed security, collateralized-mortgage obligation, or similar instrument, is permitted if the average life is projected to be less than six months. Issues of this type should be limited to an amount consistent with normal liquidity requirements, but should not exceed 25% of the value of the portfolio.

#### b. Short-Term Fixed Income Manager

The portfolio's maximum duration should be less than 120% of the Merrill 1-3 Treasury Index, and no instrument with a maturity greater than 5 years is permissible, except that:

- (1) Floating rate issues may have a longer maturity if the interest adjustment is based on an instrument with a maturity of less than 5 years.
- (2) A putable bond may be utilized if the put can be exercised within 5 years.
- (3) An asset-backed security, collateralized-mortgage obligation, or similar instrument, is permitted if the average life is projected to be less than three years at the date of purchase and subsequently less than five years. Issues of this type should be limited to an amount consistent with normal liquidity requirements, but should not exceed 15% of the value of the portfolio.

#### c. Long-Term Fixed-Income Manager

The portfolio's maximum duration should be less than 135% of the ML (7-10 yrs.) Gov't./Corp. Index.

#### 3. Diversification

- a. The manager will maintain prudent diversification across instruments, market sectors, industries, and specific issuers.
- b. Except for issues guaranteed directly or indirectly by the U.S. Government, the combined holdings of securities from one issuer shall not constitute more than 5% of the fund. All letters of credit shall be part of the invested amount of the guarantor for purposes of the 5% rule.

#### B. Equities

#### 1. <u>Instruments and Credit Quality</u>

a. The managers will be invested in high-quality common stocks. Convertible bonds, convertible preferred stocks, preferred stocks and non-voting stocks are permitted if

the risk/return characteristics are favorable versus the underlying common equity. American Depository Receipts are permitted. Specific constraints include the avoidance of restricted issues, which have limited marketability, excluding SEC Rule 144A securities.

b. There are no qualitative guidelines suggested with regard to domestic equity ratings, rankings, etc., except that prudent standards should be utilized by the investment managers. Convertible bonds will be considered as equity investments and must be rated "Baa"/"BBB" or better by both Moody's and Standard & Poor's.

#### 2. <u>Diversification</u>

The investment managers should diversify the equity portfolio in an attempt to minimize the impact of substantial loss in any specific industry or issue. Therefore, no more than the greater of 20% of the total portfolio or two times the appropriate equity market weighting may be invested in any one economic sector as defined by Standard & Poor's for domestic equities or as defined by MSCI for international equities, valued at market. In addition, no more than 5% of the total portfolio may be invested in any one company, valued at cost, and no more than 10% valued at market.

#### **Prohibited Investments**

The following categories of securities are not considered appropriate:

- A. Interest only and principal only portions of collateralized mortgage obligations, or similar securities,
- B. Private placements,
- C. Margin trading,
- D. Options and futures, except for hedging purposes

#### APPENDIX A: FUND OBJECTIVES AND CONSTRAINTS

#### NYS RETIREMENT RESERVE FUND

#### **Fund Purpose**

The NYS Retirement Reserve Fund provides for short-term NYS pension obligations of the Corporation. This Fund is also sometimes referred to as "General Operating – ECMC" in Fund reporting.

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide for the funding of the NYS retirement system obligations when excess cash allows for short term investing;
- assure that safety of principal is paramount;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, diversified, risk-averse manner;
- achieve the acceptable return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### **Time Horizon**

The assets are viewed as having a short-term time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The Fund's cash flow is generally positive but it needs to maintain a high degree of liquidity to meet annual obligations.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund can assume a low risk profile.

#### **Asset Allocation**

Given the nature of the Funds' objectives, there can be no volatility of results. Consequently, the Committee has decided to control volatility by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to minimize risk which favors cash equivalent investments.

#### RETIREE HEALTH RESERVE FUND

#### **Fund Purpose**

The Retiree Health Reserve Fund provides for intermediate- to long-term spending needs consistent with retiree health expenses.

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide for the funding and payment of retiree health obligations;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, high-quality, diversified, manner;
- achieve the optimal return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### **Time Horizon**

The assets are viewed as having a long-term time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The Fund's cash flow is generally positive, but it needs to maintain a moderate degree of liquidity to meet unexpected needs.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund can assume a low-to-moderate risk profile.

#### Asset Allocation

Historical performance results and future expectations suggest that common stocks will provide higher total investment returns than fixed-income securities over a long-term investment horizon. However, one can expect an increase in portfolio volatility as the stock percentage is increased, particularly over the short term.

It is believed that the most significant decision to affect the overall volatility of results is that which controls the split among various asset classes, particularly the equity versus fixed-income ratio. Consequently, the Committee has decided to control this ratio by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to maximize returns over the long term and has, therefore, taken a conservative investment posture that includes equity holdings, but favors fixed-income holdings.

#### W/C PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RESERVE FUND

#### **Fund Purpose**

The WC/Professional Liability Reserve Fund provides for intermediate- to long-term spending needs consistent with actuarial determined estimates of workers' compensation and medical malpractice claims.

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide for the payment of workers' compensation and professional liability claims;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, high-quality, diversified, manner;
- achieve the optimal return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### Time Horizon

The assets are viewed as having a long-term time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The Fund's cash flow is generally positive, but it needs to maintain a moderate degree of liquidity to meet unexpected needs.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund can assume a low-to-moderate risk profile.

#### **Asset Allocation**

Historical performance results and future expectations suggest that common stocks will provide higher total investment returns than fixed-income securities over a long-term investment horizon. However, one can expect an increase in portfolio volatility as the stock percentage is increased, particularly over the short term.

It is believed that the most significant decision to affect the overall volatility of results is that which controls the split among various asset classes, particularly the equity versus fixed-income ratio. Consequently, the Committee has decided to control this ratio by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to maximize returns over the long term and has, therefore, taken a conservative investment posture that includes equity holdings, but favors fixed-income holdings.

#### GENERAL DEPOSITORY & GENERAL OPERATING RESERVE

#### **Fund Purpose**

The General Depository Reserve provides funding and a source of liquidity for operating expenses of the Corporation. The General Operating Reserve provides Delivery System Reform Incentive Payments (DSRIP) to other district members of the Millennium Collaborative Care Performance Provider System (PPS).

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide the necessary funds and liquidity for operating expenses of the Corporation;
- assure that safety of principal is paramount;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, diversified, risk-averse manner;
- achieve the acceptable return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- transfer excess liquidity assets as determined by management to the General Operating Reserve Fund;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### **Time Horizon**

The assets are viewed as having a short time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The assets are viewed as having high liquidity needs.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund will assume a very conservative risk profile.

#### **Asset Allocation**

Given the nature of the Funds' objectives, there can be no volatility of results. Consequently, the Committee has decided to control volatility by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to minimize risk which favors cash equivalent investments.

#### DEBT SERVICE and DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS – 2004 SERIES and 2011 SERIES

#### **Fund Purpose**

The Debt Service Reserve Fund is used to satisfy necessary interest payments. The Debt Service Reserve Fund is held in contingency by the Trustee to offset principal and/or interest payments, if needed. Note, in 2017, Series 2011 was refunded and had a zero balance.

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide for the funding for debt service coverage;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, high-quality, diversified manner;
- achieve the optimal return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### **Time Horizon**

The assets are viewed as having a short-to-intermediate time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The assets are viewed as having moderate liquidity needs. The required funds must be available for disbursement on the May 1 and November 1 payment dates for the 2004 Series Funds; and on the First of Each Month for the 2011 Series Funds. Any shortfall would need to come from operations.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund can assume a low-to-moderate risk profile.

#### **Asset Allocation**

Historical performance results and future expectations suggest that common stocks will provide higher total investment returns than fixed-income securities over a long-term investment horizon. However, one can expect an increase in portfolio volatility as the stock percentage is increased, particularly over the short term.

It is believed that the most significant decision to affect the overall volatility of results is that which controls the split among various asset classes, particularly the equity versus fixed-income ratio.

Consequently, the Committee has decided to control this ratio by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to maximize returns over the long term and has, therefore, taken a low-to-moderate investment posture which holds a modicum of equity holdings.

#### **GNMA BOND RESERVE FUND**

#### **Fund Purpose**

The GNMA Bond Reserve Fund originally held bonds used for construction of the Gates Vascular Institute with earnings from the fund paid to the The Grider Initiative, Inc. on an annual basis. The bonds issued for construction of the Gates Vascular Institute have since been redeemed and remaining funds are considered unrestricted.

#### **Investment Objectives**

The investment objectives of the Fund are to:

- provide for the unrestricted spending needs of the Corporation;
- consistently invest assets in a prudent, high-quality, diversified manner;
- achieve the optimal return possible within the specified risk parameters;
- adhere to the established guidelines.

#### Time Horizon

The assets are viewed as having a short time horizon.

#### **Liquidity Needs**

The assets are viewed as having high liquidity needs.

#### **Overall Risk Tolerance**

The Fund will assume a very conservative risk profile.

#### Asset Allocation

Given the nature of the Fund's objectives, there can be no volatility of results. Consequently, the Committee has decided to control volatility by setting up long-term asset allocation targets. The Committee's goal is to minimize risk which favors cash equivalent investments.

APPENDIX B: FUND ALLOCATIONS AND BENCHMARKS

	NYS Retirement Reserve (Gen Op-ECMC)	Retiree Health Reserve	WC / PL Reserve	General Operating DSRIP	GNMA Bond Reserve	Policy Benchmark
Growth Assets US Large Stocks US Large Quality Stocks US Small / Mid Stocks US Small Value Stocks	201	11% 4% 4% 2%	11% 4% 4% 2%	201	224	S&P 500 NASDAQ US Dividend Achievers Select, S&P 500 S&P Completion Index CRSP US Small Cap Value
US Stocks Intl Large Stocks Emerging Market Stocks International Stocks Total Public Stocks	0%	21% 9% 5% 14% 35%	21% 9% 5% 14% 35%	0% 0% 0%	0% 0% 0%	FTSE Developed All Cap ex-US FTSE Emerging Markets All Cap China A Inclusion
Total Growth Assets Risk Reduction Assets Cash US Short Duration Fixed Income US Broad Fixed Income US Inflation Protected Fixed	100%	5% 20% 35% 5%	5% 20% 35% 5%	<b>0%</b> 100%	100%	90-Day T-Bills Bloomberg Barclays US 1-5 Year Gov't / Credit Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bloomberg Barclays US TIPS
Total Risk Reduction Assets Total	100%	65% 100%	65% 100%	100%	100% 100%	

Note: Policy asset allocation was excluded for the General Depository Fund since it is a bank deposit account.

#### **Erie County Medical Center Corporation**

Chief Financial Officer

Jonathan Swiatkowski – (716) 898-6291

Director of Finance and Authorized Investment Decision Maker

Vanessa S. Hinderliter – (716) 898-3730

#### **Mercer (Investment Consultant)**

Christopher Adkerson CFA, CAIA, Partner – (314) 982-5717 Kyle Zotta, CFA, CAIA, Principal – (314) 982-5726

#### **M&T Bank**

Laurie G. Finn, Relationship Manager – (716) 848-7348

#### Wilmington Trust (Custodian)

Rachel Schlee, Assistant Vice President, Client Service Manager II – (716) 842-5211

#### U.S. Bank National Association, Debt Service Accounts Trustee

Christopher Grell, Vice President – (212) 951-6990







## Mission

To provide every patient the highest quality of care delivered with compassion.

### Vision

#### ECMC WILL BE A LEADER IN AND RECOGNIZED FOR:

- High quality family centered care resulting in exceptional patient experiences.
- Superior clinical outcomes.
- The hospital of choice for physicians, nurses, and staff.
- Strong collaboration with community partners to improve access to healthcare and the quality of life and vitality of the region.
- Academic affiliations that provide the best education for physicians, dentists, nurses, and other clinical staff.

The difference between healthcare and true care



# Core Values

#### ACCESS

All patients get equal care regardless of their ability to pay or source of payment. We address the healthcare needs of each patient that we can appropriately serve, without bias or pre-judgment.

#### **EXCELLENCE**

Excellence is a standard that will never be lowered; there is an expectation of excellence in all areas.

#### **DIVERSITY**

We recognize the importance and value of diversity and the enrichment that diversity can bring to ECMCC.

#### **FULFILLING POTENTIAL**

We respect the value and potential of each individual as offering a significant contribution to the good of the whole organization. Personal growth and development is important for organizational success.

#### **DIGNITY**

Each individual, no matter his or her limitations, background or situation, has intrinsic dignity and unique capabilities.

#### **PRIVACY**

We honor each person's right to privacy and confidentiality.

The difference between healthcare and true care<sup>™</sup>



#### **FAIRNESS and INTEGRITY**

Equity and fairness are guidelines for all decision-making. We demand personal and institutional integrity.

#### **COMMUNITY**

In accomplishing our mission we remain mindful of the public's trust and are always responsive to the immediate surrounding community and our natural environment. This commitment represents both our organization and us as individuals. A successful future for ECMCC depends on a vibrant community and a healthy environment.

#### **COLLABORATION**

Collaboration with other organizations is beneficial within the context of our mission and is fundamental to achieving our goals.

#### **COMPASSION**

All involved with ECMCC's service delivery demonstrate caring, compassion, and understanding for patients, employees, volunteers, and families.

#### **STEWARDSHIP**

We can only be successful in carrying out our mission through solid financial performance and by assuring that resources provided to us are used effectively, in the way they were intended, and for the benefit of our patients and community.

# Erie County Medical Center Corporation

**Procurement Guidelines** 

Effective March 1, 2020\_\_\_\_\_

#### **CONTENTS**

1.	SIAI	TEMENT OF PURPOSE AND SCOPE	4				
	A.	Authority	4				
	B.	Purpose	4				
	C.	Interpretation	4				
	D.	Application of These Guidelines	4				
	E.	Referenced Policies	5				
II.	DEFI	NITION OF TERMS	5				
III.	SOUF	RCE SELECTION	8				
	A.	Methods of Source Selection	8				
	B.	Preferred Source	8				
	C.	Invitation for Bid	9				
	D.	Request for Proposal	9				
	E.	Discretionary Procurements	11				
	F.	Medical Projects	12				
	G.	Exemptions from Formal Competition.	13				
	1.	Professional Services	13				
	2.	. Additional Items under Existing Contract	13				
	3.	. Standardization	13				
	4.	Sole Source	14				
	5.	Emergency Procurement	14				
	6.	Joint Hospital Purchases	14				
	7.	Group Purchasing Organizations	15				
	8.	Surplus and Second-Hand	15				
	9.	. Recycled Products	15				
	10	0. Government Sources	15				
	1.	1. Board Waiver of Competitive Requirements	15				
	12	2. Professional Health Care Services	15				
	H.	Pre-qualification/Request for Qualifications	16				
	I.	New York State Business Enterprises	16				
IV.	PROC	CEDURES and STANDARD PROVISIONS	16				
	A.	New York State Contract Reporter	16				
	B.	Cancellation of IFB or RFP					
	C.	Responsibility of Bidders and Respondents	17				
	D.	Compliance with Procurement Lobbying Law	18				
	E.	Vendor Preparation of Technology Specifications					

	F.	Contract Provisions 18
	G.	Contract Review and Approval
	H.	ECMCC Reserved Rights
V.	BONE	D REQUIREMENT20
	A.	Bid Security. 20
	B.	Other Forms of Security on Construction Contracts
VI.	ETHIC	CS21
	A.	Definitions
	B.	Conflict of Interest
	C.	Kickbacks21
	D.	Procurement Disclosure Policy
VII.	MINO	PRITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE ("M/WBE") REQUIREMENTS22
	A.	Scope
	B.	M/WBE Goal Plan
	C.	ECMCC's Good Faith Efforts
	D.	Documentation of Good Faith Efforts
	E.	Contractor's Good Faith Efforts
	F.	Joint Ventures and Teaming Agreements
	G.	M/WBE Utilization
	H.	Self-Performance 25
	I.	Commercially Useful Function
	J.	Contractor Reporting
	K.	Non-Compliance
	L.	Waivers
	M.	M/WBE Discretionary Purchases
	N.	Consideration of Diversity Practices

#### I. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND SCOPE

#### A. Authority.

- 1. Public Authorities Law ("PAL"), Article 9, Title 4, New York Statutes, as amended.
- 2. Public Authorities Law, Article 10-C, New York Statutes, as amended (the "ECMCC Act").
- 3. General Municipal Law ("GML"), Article 5-A, New York Statutes, as amended.
- 4. Public Health Law ("PHL"), Article 28, New York Statutes, as amended.
- 5. Executive Law ("EL") Article 15A, New York Statutes, as amended.
- 6. State Finance Law ("SFL"), Article 9, New York Statutes, as amended.
- 7. Economic Development Law ("EDL"), Article 4-C, as amended.

#### B. Purpose.

The purpose of these Procurement Guidelines ("Guidelines") is to set forth the procedures for purchasing supplies, equipment, materials, construction and services, including professional services, for Erie County Medical Center Corporation ("ECMCC"). These Guidelines are applicable to ECMCC and may be applied by ECMCC in other contexts, in its discretion.

#### C. Interpretation.

These Guidelines shall be construed and applied to promote compliance with all applicable laws. In the event of a conflict between these Guidelines and the requirements of any applicable law, the applicable law will prevail.

#### D. Application of These Guidelines.

- 1. Effective Date. These Guidelines are effective March 1, 2020.
- Scope. These Guidelines shall apply to all contracts for construction and the purchase of all supplies, equipment, materials and services, including professional services, made by ECMCC irrespective of the source of funds, except as otherwise provided by law.
- 3. <u>Severability</u>. If any provision of these Guidelines or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or application of these Guidelines which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of these Guidelines are declared to be severable.
- 4. <u>Annual Review</u>. These Guidelines, as adopted pursuant to Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law and Section 104-b of the General Municipal

Law, shall be subject to annual review and may otherwise be changed without notice by the Board of Directors of ECMCC. The Guidelines are for the use of ECMCC and should not be relied upon as establishing any right by any person or entity other than ECMCC.

#### II. <u>DEFINITION OF TERMS</u>

The following terms shall, for purposes of these Guidelines, have the meanings set forth below unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

- 1. <u>Best Value</u>. The basis for awarding Contracts for services to a Contractor that optimizes quality, cost and efficiency, among responsive and responsible respondents. Such basis shall reflect, wherever possible, objective and quantifiable analysis. Such basis may also identify a quantitative factor for respondents that are Small Businesses or Minority- or Women-owned Business Enterprises ("M/WBE") to be used in evaluation of Bids or Proposals for awarding of Contracts for services. In any case where a respondents' gross price is reducible by an allowance for the value of used machinery, equipment, apparatus or tools to be traded in by a political subdivision, the gross price shall be reduced by the amount of such allowance, for the purpose of determining the Best Value. (SFL § 163(1)(j) and GML § 103).
- 2. <u>Bid.</u> An offer or proposal submitted in response to an Invitation for Bids.
- 3. <u>Construction</u>. The building, renovation, retrofitting, rehabilitation, restoration, painting, alteration or repair of any real property or improvements thereon, exclusive of the installation and assembly of any medical equipment, apparatus or device.
- 4.3. <u>Contract</u>. A written agreement, memorandum of understanding, letter agreement, letter of intent, or purchase order that formalizes the obligations of all parties involved.
- 5.4. Contractor. Any individual, business or other legal entity awarded a Contract to furnish goods or services to ECMCC.
- 6.5. Contract Value. The total value of a Contract, including all renewal options. If the value of the Contract is not known or cannot be determined at the time the Contract is awarded (i.e., a service Contract that states an hourly fee but does not state the total hours of service to be provided; a commodities Contract that states the price of the commodities but does not state the total volume of commodities to be purchased), the Contract Value shall be the total amount that ECMCC reasonably anticipates spending under the Contract during the term and any renewal options. With respect to joint Procurements, the amount to be expended by entities other than ECMCC shall be excluded from the Contract Value.
- 7.6. County. The County of Erie, New York.
- 8.7. <u>Group Purchasing Organization (GPO)</u>. An entity that aggregates the purchasing volume of members, such as hospitals and health-care providers, to leverage discounts with manufacturers, distributors and other vendors intending to realize administrative savings and efficiencies.

- 9.8. Invitation for Bids (IFB). A formal competitive solicitation seeking sealed Bids for Construction work or specified goods or services, pursuant to which award is made to the responsive and responsible bidder(s) submitting the lowest price, provided that Contracts for goods and services (excluding Contracts for services necessary for the completion of a Construction project) may be awarded on the basis of Best Value to a responsive and responsible bidder. Generally, IFBs are used for the Procurement of Construction, equipment, materials and supplies.
- 10.9. Medical Building. The component of a Medical Project constituting appurtenant structures or facilities necessary to house or render the remaining components of the Medical Project operational. Medical Building does not include apparatus, equipment, devices, systems, supplies, or any combination thereof. (PAL § 3628(11)(g)(iii)).
- 41.10. Medical Project. Any substantial durable apparatus, equipment, devise, or system, or any combination of the foregoing, including services necessary to install, erect, or assemble the foregoing, and any Medical Building, to be used for the purpose of care, treatment or diagnosis of disease or injury or the relief of pain and suffering of sick or injured persons. Medical Projects do not include ordinary supplies and equipment expended or used in the customary care and treatment of patients. (PAL § 3628(11)(g)(iv)).
- 12.11. Minority or Women-Owned Business Enterprise ("M/WBE"). A business certified under Article 15-A of the Executive Law that is independently owned, operated and authorized to do business in New York State; and is owned and controlled by at least 51% women or minority group members, respectively, who are citizens of the U.S. or permanent resident aliens. Such ownership must be real, substantial and continuing, and the minorities or women must have and exercise the authority to control independently the day-to-day business decisions of the enterprise.
- 13.12. New York State Business Enterprise. A business enterprise, including a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company or business corporation, which offers for sale or lease or other form of exchange, goods which are sought by ECMCC and which are substantially manufactured, produced or assembled in New York State, or services which are sought by ECMCC and which are substantially performed within New York State. (PAL § 2879(5)(b)(ii)).
- 14.13. New York State Contract Reporter ("NYSCR"). A publication of procurement opportunities printed for the New York State Economic Development Bureau pursuant to the New York State Economic Development Law. (EDL §§ 141 143).
- 15.14. Personal Services. Any services performed for a fee, commission or other compensation by persons or organizations that are not providing such services as employees of ECMCC. Personal Services include, but are not limited to, professional services or any other services of a consulting, technical or professional nature.
- 16.15. <u>Preferred Source</u>. Contractors selected in accordance with ECMCC's Preferred Source Policy and State Finance Law Section 162, offering specific commodities or services that meet the form, function and utility requirements of ECMCC.

- 17.16. Project Developer. Any individual or entity that has submitted a Proposal in response to a Request for Proposals for a Medical Project. (PAL § 3628(11)(g)(i)).
- 18.17. Procurement. The acquisition of goods and/or services.
- 19.18. Procurement Contract. Any written agreement to which ECMCC is a party for the acquisition of goods or services of any kind in the actual or estimated amount of five thousand dollars (\$5,000) or more. (EDL § 141).
- 20.19. Procurement Record. Documentation of the decisions made and the approach taken with respect to a Procurement.
- 21.20. <u>Professional Services</u>. Services involving the provision of advice, instruction or specialized work from an individual, firm or corporation specifically qualified or licensed to provide such services including, but not limited to, accounting, legal, health care, consulting and management services.
- 21. Proposal. An offer or response submitted in response to a Request for Proposals.
- 22. Public Works. The building, renovation, retrofitting, rehabilitation, restoration, painting, alteration or repair of any real property or improvements thereon, exclusive of the installation and assembly of any medical equipment, apparatus or device.
- 22.23. Recycled Product. A product that is manufactured from secondary materials as defined in the EDL § 261(1)(d).
- 23.24. Request for Proposal ("RFP"). A competitive solicitation seeking Proposals for a specified service or technology, pursuant to which an award is made to the responsive and responsible respondent offering the best value. Generally, RFPs are used for the Procurement of services, information technology systems, and consultants.
- 24.25. Responsible. The status afforded an individual or company based on factors such as: financial ability and organization capacity; legal authority to conduct business in New York state; integrity as it relates to business related conduct; and past performance.
- 25.26. Responsive. Meeting the minimum Specifications or Requirements as prescribed in a solicitation for goods or services.
- 26.27. Small Business. A business which is resident in New York State, independently owned and operated, not dominant in its field and employs one hundred or less persons. (SFL § 163(1)(e)).
- 27.28. Specifications (Requirements). Description of the physical or functional characteristics or the nature of a good, the work to be performed, the service or products to be provided, the necessary qualifications of the offeror, the capacity and capability of the offeror to successfully carry out the proposed Contract, the

process for achieving specific results and/or anticipated outcomes, or any other requirement necessary to perform the work.

#### III. SOURCE SELECTION

#### A. Methods of Source Selection.

Unless otherwise authorized by law, all ECMCC Contracts will be awarded in accordance with one of the following Sections of these Guidelines.

#### B. Preferred Source.

Prior to engaging in any other method of source selection for the purchase of goods or services, ECMCC shall assess, in accordance with the ECMCC Preferred Source Policy and Section 162 of the State Finance Law, whether the desired goods or services are available from an offeror that has been afforded Preferred Source status. If a Preferred Source has goods or services available in the form, function and utility consistent with the needs of ECMCC, such goods or services shall be procured in accordance with the requirements of State Finance Law section 162 and ECMCC's Preferred Source Policy. If a good or service is not available in form, function and utility consistent with the needs of ECMCC from a Preferred Source, ECMCC may then exercise its authority to utilize any of the other applicable procurement methods set forth in these Guidelines.

#### C. Invitation for Bid.

- 1. <u>Invitation for Bid.</u> When the estimated amount of Procurement exceeds \$20,000 for supplies and services, or \$35,000 for <u>public Public construction</u> <u>Works projects</u>, and alternate means of procurement described herein are otherwise not available, ECMCC will issue an Invitation for Bid which shall include Specifications and the contractual terms and conditions applicable to the Procurement. (GML § 103(1)).
- 2. <u>Public Notice</u>. ECMCC must publish notice of the IFB in a daily newspaper, having general circulation in the County, at least five (5) days prior to the date set forth therein for the opening of Bids. Such notice shall state the time and place for opening of the Bids. Where applicable, ECMCC must also publish notice of the IFB in the Contract Reporter in accordance with Section IV.A. (GML § 103(2), PAL § 3628(10)(b)).
- 3. <u>Bid Acceptance and Evaluation</u>. Timely bids will be unconditionally accepted and evaluated for Responsiveness based on the requirements set forth in the IFB, which may include criteria to determine acceptability such as inspection, quality, workmanship, delivery and suitability for a particular purpose.
- 4. <u>Correction or Withdrawal of Bids; Cancellation of Awards</u>. ECMCC may permit, where appropriate, the withdrawal of inadvertently erroneous Bids before or after award, or cancellation of awards or Contracts based on such Bid mistakes. After Bid opening, no changes to Bid prices or other provisions of Bids prejudicial to the interest of ECMCC or fair competition shall be

permitted.

- 5. <u>Award</u>. A Contract will be awarded after all necessary approvals have been obtained by written notice to the lowest Responsible and Responsive bidder (or bidders, in the case of multiple awards) whose Bid meets the Specifications set forth in the IFB.
- 6. <u>Bid Retention</u>. All Bids received, including all related documentation and communications received from bidders during the bidding process, will be maintained in a Procurement Record by ECMCC for at least twelve (12) months.

#### D. Request for Proposal.

- 1. Request for Proposals. A Contract may be solicited through an RFP rather than an IFB if the estimated amount of Procurement exceeds \$20,000 for supplies and services or \$35,000 for public eonstruction—Works projects and factors other than price are critical to the Procurement (such as specialized skills or equipment) and alternate means of procurement described herein are otherwise not available. For example, an RFP might be used for the Procurement of Personal Services or the Procurement of biotechnology, electronic, software and system applications. (GML § 103(1)). ECMCC will issue an RFP, which shall include a statement of work and/or Specifications, and the contractual terms and conditions applicable to the Procurement.
- 2. <u>Public Notice</u>. ECMCC shall, if applicable, publish notice of the RFP in the Contract Reporter in accordance with Section IV.A. ECMCC may also publish notice of the RFP in a newspaper or other publication for purposes of soliciting participation as determined by the Director of Purchasing.
- 3. Evaluation. Where the basis for award is the Best Value offer, the Procurement Record shall include a determination of the evaluation criteria in advance of the initial receipt of proposals, which whenever possible, shall be quantifiable, and shall describe the process to be used in the determination of Best Value and the manner in which the evaluation process and selection shall be conducted. The RFP shall set forth criteria stating the relative importance of each evaluation factor to the Procurement, including price, to be used by ECMCC during the evaluation period. Each Procurement based on Best Value shall be evaluated by a selection committee of no fewer than two (2) impartial employees or contractors of ECMCC with subject matter expertise. The Procurement Record shall include a full record of all evaluations performed by selection committee, including scorecards of the criteria.
- 4. Negotiations with Responsible Offeror and Revisions to Proposals. As provided in the RFP, ECMCC may conduct negotiations with Responsible offerors who timely submit Proposals determined to be reasonably qualified to be selected for award. The purpose of negotiations will be to seek the Best Value for ECMCC and to clarify for and advise offerors of the deficiencies in both the technical and price aspects of their Proposals so as to assure the full understanding of and conformance to the solicitation requirements. No offeror will be provided information about any other offeror's Proposal, and no offeror will be assisted in bringing its Proposal up to the level of any other

Proposal. Offerors will not be directed to reduce their Proposal prices to a specified amount in order to be considered for award. A common deadline will be established for receipt of Proposal revisions and communicated to Responsible offerors.

- 5. <u>Award</u>. After evaluation of Proposal revisions, if any, award will be made to the responsible offeror (or offerors, in the case of multiple awards) whose Proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to ECMCC, taking into consideration price and the evaluation factors set forth in the RFP.
- 6. <u>Proposal Retention</u>. All Proposals received, including all related documentation and communications received from offerors during the selection process, will be maintained by ECMCC for at least twelve (12) months.

#### **E.** Discretionary Procurements.

For purchases up to the discretionary Procurement thresholds set forth below, ECMCC shall not be required to conduct formal competitive bidding processes. With respect to any discretionary Procurement, ECMCC must (i) ensure that the goods, services or technology acquired meet ECMCC's form, function and utility needs; (ii) document and justify the selection of the vendor; (iii) document and justify the reasonableness of the price; and(iv) ensure that the vendor is a Responsible vendor. Reasonableness of price may be determined by obtaining three (3) alternate quotes or comparing the proposed price to prices paid for similar goods or services within the previous twelve (12) months.

- 1. <u>Supplies and Services under \$20,000</u>. Any Procurement of goods and services, including Professional Services, with a Contract Value that does not exceed \$20,000 including all renewal options may be made without a competitive bidding process; provided, however, that reasonable efforts shall be made to ensure that the price to be paid is reasonable. A Procurement shall not be artificially divided so as to constitute a discretionary Procurement under this Section. (GML § 103(1)).
- 2. <u>Public Works under \$35,000</u>. Any <u>Construction Public Works</u> project with a total Contract Value that does not exceed \$35,000 may be awarded without a competitive bidding process; provided, however, that reasonable efforts shall be made to ensure that the price paid is reasonable. A <u>Construction Public Works</u> project may not be divided into more than one project so as to constitute a discretionary Procurement under this Section. (GML § 103(1)).
- 3. M/WBE and SDVOB Goods and Services under \$500,000. Any Procurement Contract for goods or services with a Contract Value that does not exceed \$500,000 may be awarded to an M/WBE or Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business ("SDVOB") without a competitive bidding process, provided that the price for the goods or services is determined to be reasonable in accordance with these guidelines. The reasonably expected aggregate amount of all purchases of the same commodities or services from the same provider within the twelve-month period commencing on the date of the first purchase cannot exceed the \$500,000 limit. Therefore, even though the value of an individual Procurement Contract may be below the discretionary threshold, expected

purchases during the following twelve (12) month period should be evaluated to determine whether the discretionary procurement exception is available. Where the Contract Value exceeds \$50,000, the Contract award, and if applicable, the mini-bid directed to M/WBE or SDVOB firms (as applicable), must be advertised in the New York State Contract Reporter in accordance with Section IV.A. (PAL § 2879).

4. <u>Small Business Goods and Services under \$500,000</u>. Any Procurement Contract for goods or services with a Contract Value that does not exceed \$500,000, including all renewal options, may be awarded to a Small Business without competitive bidding process, provided that the price for the goods or services is determined to be reasonable. For purposes of determining reasonableness of price, the same process set forth relating to M/WBE discretionary awards shall apply to Small Business discretionary awards. The Procurement requirements shall not be artificially divided so as to constitute a discretionary Procurement under this Section III.G. Where the Contract Value exceeds \$50,000, the Contract award and, if applicable, the solicitation directed to Small Businesses, must be advertised in the New York State Contract Reporter in accordance with Section IV.A. (PAL § 2879).

#### F. Medical Projects.

- 1. <u>Source Selection</u>. ECMCC may award Contracts for Medical Projects to Project Developers on the basis of factors other than cost alone, including but not limited to, facility design, system reliability, efficiency, safety and compatibility with other elements of patient care. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of law, a Contract for a Medical Project with a Project Developer may be awarded pursuant to the competitive bidding process outlined in Section III.C (Invitation for Bid) or pursuant to the Proposal evaluation process outlined in Section III.D (Request for Proposal). (PAL § 3628(10)).
- 2. <u>Public Notice</u>. When an RFP is issued for a Medical Project, ECMCC shall publish notice of such issuance in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the County. Concurrent with the publication of such notice, a draft RFP shall be filed with the County Commissioner of Health. (PAL § 3628(10)(b)).
- 3. <u>Board Resolution</u>. If after issuance of an RFP for a Medical Project, a Contract is awarded to a Project Developer who is not the lowest bidder, ECMCC shall adopt a resolution containing particularized findings indicating that the requirements of ECMCC are met by the award and that such award is in the public's best interest. (PAL § 3628(10)(b)).
- 4. Project Cost over \$500,000. Where a Medical Project expected to cost more than \$500,000 involves the construction of a Medical Building, ECMCC's Contract with the Project Developer shall provide that the Medical Building shall be constructed through Contracts awarded through a competitive bidding process outlined in within Public Authorities Law Section 3628, and shall require separate and independent competitive bidding in each of the following subdivisions:

- (a) plumbing and gas fitting;
- (b) steam heating, hot water heating, ventilating and air conditioning apparatus; and
- (c) electric wiring and standard illuminating fixtures.

(PAL §§ 3628(11)(b)(i)-(iii)).

5. <u>Bid Security</u>. Where a Medical Project expected to cost more than \$500,000 involves the construction of a Medical Building, the Project Developer or the Project Developer's construction subcontractors shall furnish bid security as provided in Section V.A(1). (PAL § 3628(11)).

#### **G.** Exemptions from Formal Competition.

The following types of Procurements are exempt from the competitive bidding procurement processes outlined in Section III.C and III.D, and may be awarded by ECMCC without issuance of a formal IFB, provided however that unless otherwise noted herein, exemption from such competitive bidding procurement processes shall not exempt the Procurement from applicable M/WBE participation requirements set forth herein or Contract Reporter publication requirements set forth in Section IV.A:

- 1. Professional Services. Where the issuance of an RFP is impractical due to the professional nature or scope of the services to be provided, such Professional Services may be procured through the solicitation of price quotations from no less than three (3) offerors. Such quotations must be obtained in writing. Award will be made to the offeror providing the Best Value to ECMCC based on an evaluation of the price and other specified factors. If factors other than price are utilized in the evaluation of the quotes, such factors shall be disclosed to all offerors at the time the price quotation is solicited. The names, addresses and/or telephone numbers of the offerors and persons contacted, along with the date and amount of each quotation shall be recorded and maintained in the Procurement Record. Any award of a Contract under this Section shall comply with ECMCC's M/WBE policies and procedures and the Contractor Reporter publication requirements set forth in Section IV.A.
- 2. Additional Items under Existing Contract. Where the need for additional items or services arises under an existing Contract awarded pursuant to an IFB or RFP, such Procurement may be made without issuing a new IFB or RFP, provided that the additional items or services were contemplated under the original IFB or RFP, are provided within eighteen (18) months of the original RFP or IFB and the quantity of additional items or services does not exceed thirty (30%) percent of the quantity of items or services procured under the original Contract. This requirement shall not extend to contract extensions for the same services or products awarded pursuant to a compliant IFB or RFP. All communications and documentation related to the Procurement of additional items or services will be maintained in the Procurement Record. For avoidance of doubt, this Section shall not apply to any discretionary Procurements to the extent that the additional items or services would cause the Contract Value to exceed the discretionary Procurement threshold. To the extent that the additional items or services impact the Contract Value, and the Contract is subject to M/WBE goals, ECMCC shall require the Contractor to

- submit an updated M/WBE Utilization Plan in accordance with these guidelines.
- 3. <u>Standardization</u>. For reasons of efficiency or economy, purchase Contracts for equipment, material, supplies or services may be standardized to a particular make, model or brand upon the approval by at least three-fifths of the members of the Board of Directors of ECMCC. The resolution adopted by the Board shall specify the reasons that standardization is appropriate. A common reason for standardization is to ensure that equipment purchased is compatible with existing equipment or spare parts. For such purchases to be justified, the original equipment should be suitable for the required purpose, the price should be reasonable when compared to the overall cost, and the advantages of another make or source of equipment shall have been considered and rejected on grounds acceptable to ECMCC. After a resolution is adopted, ECMCC may specify the standardized make, model or brand in specification document, however all competitive processes set forth in these Guidelines must still be followed. (GML § 103(5)).
- Sole and Single Sources. When ECMCC determines that there is only one 4. source for required goods or services, and no other vendor offers functionally equivalent goods or services in the marketplace, a Procurement Contract for such goods or services may be awarded without competitive procedures, provided that a Sole Source Justification Form is completed by the Department initiating the Procurement and approved by the Director of Purchasing, Counsel, and ECMCC's CEO or CFO. Sole source Procurements with Contract Values exceeding \$50,000 shall be advertised in the Contract Reporter in accordance with Section IV.A. The definition of "Sole Source" under these Guidelines shall include those instances where goods or services are available from two or more vendors, but a particular vendor is preferable because of specific factors described in this section. Factors supporting an award in such a "single source" situation include: (i) legislation or appropriation mandates use of particular vendor; (ii) warranty voided if service or parts are provided by a different vendor; (iii) software license renewals, additions, or upgrades available from only one source, or (iv) other circumstances as may be identified in the Sole Source Justification Form, as may be amended. Advertisements with local media sources and endorsement agreements with celebrities shall automatically be categorized as "Sole Source" agreements by ECMCC due to the unique, exclusive characteristics of such relationships. (1983 Op. St. Compt. No. 83-67; 1986 Op. St. Compt. No. 86-41; 1988 Op. St. Compt. No. 88-35; and related case law).
- 5. <u>Emergency Procurement</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Guidelines, ECMCC may make or authorize others to make an emergency Procurement in the event of an accident or unforeseen occurrence or condition that affects its buildings or property, or the life, health, safety, or property of its staff or patients, or to prevent or minimize serious disruption of ECMCC services jeopardizing patient health, welfare or safety; subject to the following provisions:
  - (a) The emergency Procurement shall be limited to those supplies, services or construction items necessary to meet the immediate emergency;

- (b) Emergency Procurements shall be made with such competition as is practicable under the circumstances;
- (c) When practicable, Approval approval of the CEO shall be obtained prior to the Procurement;
- (d) For emergency Procurements that equal or exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000), the Board of Directors must ratify the Emergency Procurement at the next Board meeting. (GML § 103(4)).
- 6. <u>Joint Hospital Purchases</u>. ECMCC may participate in a joint purchasing agreement for the Procurement of goods, supplies and services with one or more other municipal, state, federal or privately-owned hospital or other health related facility or medical school that receives public funding without a competitive <u>biddingprocurement process</u>. Such cooperative or joint purchasing may include, but is not limited to, multi-party contracts between public Procurement units and open-ended public Procurement unit contracts that are made available to other entities. Such joint purchases are exempt from traditional M/WBE goals but must comply with other applicable M/WBE policies ECMCC has in place governing joint purchases. (GML § 103(8); PHL § 2803-a).
- 7. <u>Group Purchasing Organizations</u>. ECMCC recognizes purchases made through Group Purchasing Organizations as a best practice in hospital purchasing nationwide with associated efficiencies, savings and speed. ECMCC may participate in one or more group purchasing organizations (GPO). Procurements made pursuant to a GPO arrangement shall not be subject to competitive <u>bidding procurement</u> processes or traditional M/WBE goals. (PHL § 2803-a; 1989 Op. St. Compt. No. 89-2).
- 8. <u>Surplus and Second-Hand</u>. Surplus and second-hand supplies, equipment and materials purchased from the federal government, New York State, or any other political subdivision, district or public benefit corporation are not subject to the competitive bidding process. (GML § 103(6)).
- 9. Recycled Products. Recycled products may be purchased without regard to the competitive Bid process so long as they meet the specified requirements and are reasonably competitive. Reasonably competitive shall mean that the cost of the recycled product does not exceed a cost premium of ten (10%) percent above a comparable non- recycled product. (GML § 104-a).
- 10. Government Sources. ECMCC may purchase from the New York State Office of General Services when the purchase exceeds \$500 pursuant to the procedures set forth in NY State Finance Law § 163. Additionally, ECMCC may utilize the terms of a federal government general services contract where the terms are to the advantage of ECMCC and have been offered to ECMCC by the contractor. Purchases from such federal or state sources, or it may make purchases from the federal government, may be made without regard to the competitive Bid process or M/WBE goals. However, when ECMCC elects to use a federal source for the purchase of goods or services, no purchase may be made where a Bid for such good or service has been received, unless the purchase may be entered into upon the same terms, conditions, and

Specifications and represent a cost savings to ECMCC. (<u>GML § 104;</u> SFL § 163(3)(iv); PAL § 3628(9)).

- 11. Board Waiver of Requirements for Competitive Selection of Contractors. The ECMCC Board may, by resolution, waive requirements for the competitive selection of contractors for a specific procurement that otherwise would be awarded on a competitive basis when such waiver is in the best interest of ECMCC. Accordingly, the Board of Directors may, upon careful deliberation and a vote of 2/3 of the Directors present at a meeting of the Board at which such Contract is presented, waive the selection of contractors on a competitive basis when doing so is in the best interest of ECMCC. (PAL § 2879(3)(b)(i)).
- 12. <u>Professional Health Care Services</u>. Contracts for professional health care services including but not limited to services performed by health care agencies or entities, physicians, dentists, physician's assistants, home health and personal care aides, occupational, speech, respiratory and physical therapists, nurses, nurses' assistants, medical and laboratory technicians, diagnosticians, social workers, psychiatric workers, veterinarians, and persons who provide care, treatment, counseling, case management, rehabilitative or preventative services to the mentally ill, developmentally disabled and those suffering from the disease of alcoholism or substance abuse are exempt from competitive <u>biddingprocurement processes</u>. (case law and various State Comptroller opinions)
- 13. <u>Subsidiaries of the Corporation</u>. ECMCC may own, in whole or in part, one or more subsidiary corporations formed to exercise and perform portions of its purposes, powers, duties, functions, or activities. Delegation of such activities to these corporations shall not be subject to competitive bidding procurement processes or traditional M/WBE goals. (PAL § 3631(9)).
- 14. <u>Lease Agreements</u>. ECMCC may lease or purchase real property from private entities without engaging in an <u>IFB or RFP\_competitive procurement process</u>. (GML § 103 and related case law).

#### H. Pre-qualification/Request for Qualifications.

Prospective suppliers may be pre-qualified for particular types of supplies, services or construction. Such pre-qualification, however, is subject to subsequent review and does not necessarily constitute a finding of Responsibility for any particular contract award nor does it guarantee an amount to be awarded. Notice of the Request for Qualifications shall be published at least annually in a newspaper of general circulation, and shall be published in the New York State Contract Reporter, similar to an IFB/RFP. The pre-qualified vendor list generated by the Request for Qualifications shall not contain less than five (5) bidders and must remain open for additional qualified bidders. Prequalification of bidders does not constitute competitive bidding. An IFB or RFP must still be used to determine how a particular Procurement will be awarded. (GML § 103(15)(b)).

#### I. New York State Business Enterprises.

It is the goal of ECMCC to promote the participation of New York State Business

Enterprises and New York State Residents in Procurement Contracts. (PAL §§ 2879(3)(n)-(p)).

#### IV. PROCEDURES and STANDARD PROVISIONS

- **A.** New York State Contract Reporter. All Procurements (other than joint purchases and contracts for health care services) of goods, services or public works having a Contract Value of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) or more shall be published in the New York State Contract Reporter (except as provided below).
  - 1. Notice of Procurement. For all Procurement Contracts with a Contract value equal to or greater than \$50,000, ECMCC will, prior to issuing an IFB or RFP, submit the following information to the New York State Contract Reporter website: (a1) ECMCC's name and address; (b2) the IFB or RFP number; (e3) a brief description of the goods and/or services sought, the location where goods are to be delivered and/or services provided and the contract term; (44) the address where bids or proposals are to be submitted; (e5) the due date for Bids or Proposals; (6) a description of any eligibility or qualification requirements or preferences; (7) a statement as to whether the contract requirements may be fulfilled by a subcontracting, joint venture or coproduction arrangement; (8) any other information deemed useful to potential contractors; (9) the name, address, and phone number of the person to be contacted for additional information and (10) a statement as to whether the goods and/or services sought have, in the immediately preceding three-year period, been supplied by a Foreign Business Enterprise (as defined in EDL § 141(2)). The notice of Procurement opportunity shall appear in the NYSCR at least fifteen (15) business days prior to the Bid or Proposal due date. (EDL § 142(2)(c).
  - 2. <u>Notice of Contract Award</u>. At the time a determination of intent to award a Procurement Contract is made, the following information shall be submitted for publication in NYSCR:
    - (a) For Procurement Contracts obtained through IFB, the result of the Bid opening including the names of bidding firms and the amounts bid by each;
    - (b) For Procurement Contracts obtained through RFP or quote solicitation, the names of vendors submitting Proposals or quotes and the vendor submitting the selected Best Value Proposal or quote.
    - (c) For all other Procurement Contracts (including Procurement Contracts with a value of \$50,000 or more awarded on a sole source or single source basis, including such Contracts not exceeding \$500,000 awarded to Small Businesses or M/WBE firms, or for the purchase of goods and/or technology that are recycled or remanufactured, and certain other Procurement Contracts exempt from the general advertising requirement for procurement contract bidding opportunities), the name of

3. <u>Exemptions</u>. This Section IV.A shall not apply (a) in the event of an Emergency Procurement, (b) if the Procurement is being resolicited within forty-five (45) business days after the date Bids or Proposals were originally due, or (c) to Procurement Contracts awarded to not-for-profit human services providers. (EDL § 144).

#### B. Cancellation of Invitation for Bid or Request for Proposal.

An IFB, RFP or other solicitation may be canceled, or any or all Bids or Proposals may be rejected in whole or in part as may be specified in the solicitation or otherwise, when it is in the best interest of ECMCC. The reasons for the cancellation or rejection shall be made part of the Procurement Record. (GML § 103(1)).

#### C. Responsibility of Bidders and Respondents.

- 1. <u>Standards</u>. Factors to be considered in determining whether the standard of "Responsibility" has been met include whether a prospective contractor has:
  - (a) Available the appropriate financial, material, equipment, facility and/or personnel resources and expertise, or the ability to obtain them, necessary to indicate its ability to meet all contractual requirements;
  - (b) A satisfactory record of performance with projects of a similar size and nature:
  - (c) A satisfactory record of integrity;
  - (d) Qualified legally to contract with ECMCC; and
  - (e) Promptly supplied all necessary information in connection with the inquiry concerning responsibility.
- 2. Written Determination of Non-Responsibility or Non-responsiveness Required. If a bidder or offeror who otherwise would have been awarded a contract is found non-responsible or nonresponsive, ECMCC shall issue a written determination of non-responsibility or non-responsiveness setting forth the basis of the finding.
- D. Compliance with Procurement Lobbying Laws. In accordance with State Finance Law Section 139-j, potential Contractors are prohibited from contacting ECMCC in an effort to influence a decision on a pending Procurement during the "Restricted Period" set forth within such law. Further, in accordance with State Finance Law Section 139-k, bidders and offerors are required to disclose findings of non-responsibility made within the previous four years by any governmental entity where such prior finding of non-responsibility was due to: (a) a violation of Section 139-j, or (b) the intentional provision of false or incomplete information to a governmental entity. ECMCC shall investigate any report of violation of these laws. Failure to comply with these laws may result in the disqualification of a Contractor from future Procurement opportunities.
- E. Contractor Preparation of Technology Specifications. If a Contractor prepares and furnishes specifications for a technology Procurement proposal, to be used in a competitive Procurement, such Contractor shall not be permitted to bid or propose on

such Procurement, either as a prime contractor or as a subcontractor. Contracts for evaluation of offers for products or services shall not be awarded to a Contractor that would then evaluate its own offers for products or services. Such restrictions shall not apply where:

- 1. The Contractor is the sole source or single source of the product or service;
- 2. More than one Contractor has been involved in preparing the specifications for a Procurement proposal; or
- 3. A Contractor has furnished at ECMCC's request specifications or information regarding a product or service they provide, but such Contractor has not been directly requested to write specifications for such product or service or an ECMCC technology procurement proposal.

#### F. Contract Provisions.

- 1. All Contracts for Personal Services shall detail the scope of services to be performed and the time frame for performance, the monitoring or reviewing of that performance by ECMCC personnel and, where appropriate, any permitted use of supplies, facilities or personnel. Such contracts also shall state the compensation for the services, the timing of payment, the preconditions for receiving payment from ECMCC, procedures for termination of the contract and any other provisions counsel deems necessary or appropriate for each particular contract. If the performance of any contract permits or requires the use of subcontractors, the Contract shall require the Contractor to act affirmatively to secure such participation by M/WBEs and to report the nature and extent of such efforts to ECMCC in accordance with predetermined ECMCC participation goals.
- 2. All Contracts Bid documents awarded through one of the competitive Bid processes also must include the following non-collusive bidding certification language:
  - (a) By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of knowledge and belief:
    - The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with any competitor;
    - Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this bid have not been knowingly disclosed by the bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other bidder or to any competitor; and
    - Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this bid have not been knowingly disclosed by the

bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other bidder or to any competitor; and

 No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

#### G. Contract Review and Approval.

- 1. <u>General Counsel</u>. All contracts and amendments to contracts must be reviewed and approved by ECMCC's General Counsel, with the exception of renewals or extensions to existing contracts upon the same terms and conditions previously reviewed and approved by the General Counsel. General Counsel may designate an attorney member of the Office of General Counsel to perform review in any particular instance.
- 2. <u>Board Approval of Non-Budgeted Contracts</u>. Any Contract with a Contract Value in excess of \$500,000 that does not appear in the budget must be approved by the Board of Directors.
- 3. <u>Board Approval and Annual Review of Certain Contracts for Services</u>. Any Procurement Contract for services with an actual or anticipated term of more than one (1) year must be approved by and annually reviewed by the Board of Directors. (PAL § 2879).
- 4. <u>Signing Authority</u>. The Chief Exeutive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and President are the only persons authorized to sign Contracts on behalf of ECMCC.
- **H. ECMCC Reserved Rights.** The following statement of reserved rights may be incorporated in all RFPs and IFBs.

#### ECMCC reserves the right to:

- 1. Reject any and all proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposals or Invitation for Bids:
- 2. Disqualify any respondent whose conduct or proposal fails to conform to the requirements of this RFP/IFB;
- 3. Withdraw this RFP/IFB at any time at its sole discretion;
- 4. Prior to submission of proposals to amend the RFP/IFB specifications to correct errors or oversights, or to supply additional information as it becomes available;
- 5. Change any of the scheduled dates;
- 6. Waive any requirements that are not material;
- 7. Waive any non-conformity with the requirements of this RFP/IFB;

- 8. Terminate this RFP/IFB process at any time;
- 9. Seek clarification from a respondent at any time throughout the RFP/IFB process for the purpose of resolving ambiguities or questioning information presented in proposals;
- 10. Award the contract in whole or in part and/or apportion the award among one or more respondents;
- 11. Negotiate final terms with the successful respondent(s);
- 12. Conduct contract negotiations with the next responsible bidder, should ECMCC be unsuccessful in negotiating with the selected bidder; and
- Prepare a list of finalists based on initial proposal evaluations and request that finalists present in-person or telecommunicated presentations to ECMCC: and
- 13.14. Extend the term of any resulting contract for the items or services described herein for additional lengths of time at its discretion.

#### V. BOND REQUIREMENT

#### A. Bid Security.

- 1. Requirement for Bid Security on Construction Contracts. Bid security shall be required for Contracts involving the construction of a Medical Building when the cost is estimated to exceed \$500,000. Bid security shall be in the form of a bond from the Project Developer or the Project Developer's construction subcontractor guaranteeing prompt payment when due to all persons furnishing labor and materials. Such bond shall be provided by a surety company authorized to do business in New York, or the equivalent in cash or otherwise supplied in a form satisfactory to ECMCC. Nothing herein prevents the requirement of such bonds on other construction Contracts or Contracts valued under \$500,000 when the circumstances warrant. (PAL § 3628(11))
- 2. <u>Bid Security on Supply or Services Contracts</u>. Bid security may be required for supply or service contracts, as ECMCC deems necessary to protect ECMCC's interests. Any security requirements shall be set forth in the solicitation. Bid security shall be a bond provided by a surety company authorized to do business in New York or the equivalent in cash or otherwise supplied in a form satisfactory to ECMCC. Bid security shall not be used as a substitute for a determination of a bidder or offeror's responsibility.
- 3. <u>Rejection of Solicitations for Noncompliance with Bid Security Requirements</u>. When the solicitation requires security, noncompliance requires that the Bid or Proposal be rejected unless otherwise waived by ECMCC pursuant to these Guidelines. (PAL § 3628(11)).

#### B. Other Forms of Security on Construction Contracts.

ECMCC may require other forms of security to assure timely, faithful and uninterrupted performance, including, but not limited to, operations period surety bonds, letters of credit, and appropriate written guarantees from the Contractor.

#### VI. ETHICS

#### A. Definitions.

- 1. <u>Direct and Indirect Participation</u>. Involvement through decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or Procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity.
- 2. <u>Employee</u>. Any individual drawing a salary from ECMCC or any non-compensated individual performing services for ECMCC.
- 3. <u>Relative</u>. An individual residing in the same household as the ECMCC employee and any individual who is a direct descendent of the employee's grandparents or the spouse of such descendent.

#### B. Conflict of Interest.

- 1. <u>Conflict of Interest</u>. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any <u>employee Employee</u> to participate directly or indirectly in a Procurement when the <u>employee Employee</u> knows that:
  - (a) The <u>employee Employee</u> or a <u>relative Relative</u> of the <u>employee</u> <u>Employee</u> has a financial interest pertaining to the Procurement;
  - (b) A business or organization in which the <u>employee Employee</u> or <u>relative Relative</u> is involved has a financial interest pertaining to the Procurement;
  - (c) Any other person, business, or organization with whom the <a href="mailto:employee-Employee">employee-Employee</a> or <a href="mailto:relative-Relative">relative-Relative</a> is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning prospective employment is involved in the Procurement.

#### C. Kickbacks.

It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor, higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, or a relative of such contractors or subcontractors, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

## VII. MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE ("M/WBE") REQUIREMENTS.

**A. Scope**. All Procurement Contracts entered into by ECMCC exceeding \$25,000 for labor, services, supplies, equipment, or materials or exceeding \$100,000 for the acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements, must comply with the M/WBE requirements set forth

in New York State Executive Law Article 15-A, as well as 5 NYCRR Parts 142-144 ("M/WBE Regulations") ("State Contracts"). With respect to procurement of services and commodities, ECMCC shall consider the reasonably expected aggregate amount of all purchases of the same commodities or services to be made within a twelve (12) month period commencing on the date of purchase when determining whether these requirements apply. Aggregate purchases of the same commodities or services within a twelve (12) month period are deemed a single transaction.

#### B. M/WBE Goal Plan.

- 1. Generally. Annually, ECMCC shall submit to the director of the NYS Department of Economic Development, Division of Minority and Women's Business Development (the "Division"), an M/WBE Goal Plan setting forth the percentage of ECMCC expenditures targeted for the participation of M/WBEs in the following State Contract categories:
  - Construction;
  - Commodities;
  - Construction related professional services; and
  - Non-construction related professional and non-professional services.
- 2. <u>Establishment of Goals</u>. ECMCC shall review all State Contracts and establish overall goals for each contract as well as goals for specific MBE and WBE participation, as required by 5 NYCRR 142.2. Generally, ECMCC is committed to achieving an overall M/WBE utilization percentage of thirty percent (30%) of ECMCC's agency budget, which percentage goal may be amended from time to time as set forth in the M/WBE Goal Plan (the "M/WBE Goal"). This goal is generally subdivided into twenty percent (20%) MBE and ten percent (10%) WBE participation, but may be reduced or increased on an individual basis at ECMCC's discretion. upon analysis and review of potential subcontracting opportunities by ECMCC.
- 3. <u>Exempt and Excluded Expenditures</u>. The M/WBE Goal Plan includes a list of "Exempt" and "Excluded" expenditures, which expenditures are not included in ECMCC's agency budget. Such exemptions and exclusions shall include those otherwise described within these Guidelines, but may also include other areas that ECMCC determines insufficient M/WBE utilization is available, subject to approval by NYS.
- 4. <u>State Contract Goals</u>. Each IFB, RFP, and proposed contract that is expected to result in a State Contract (other than an exempt or excluded State Contract) shall set forth the M/WBE Goal for the State Contract. Individual goals may be set for each State Contract, taking into consideration the factors set forth in 5 NYCRR 141.2(e). Each IFB and RFP shall include detailed instructions on M/WBE compliance and requirements to be met in responding the IFB or RFP.
- **C. ECMCC's Good Faith Efforts**. For all procurements anticipated to result in a State Contract (other than an exempt or excluded State Contract), ECMCC shall employ

good faith efforts to achieve M/WBE participation in accordance with 5 NYCRR 141.6, including, but not limited to, the following notice of solicitation strategies:

- 1. <u>NYS Contract Reporter</u>. With respect to all procurements expected to result in a State Contract exceeding \$50,000, such procurements shall be advertised in the New York State Contract Reporter.
- 2. <u>Direct Solicitation of M/WBEs</u>. Notice of the solicitation (by email or letter) shall be sent by ECMCC's Department of Purchasing directly to certified M/WBEs that have been identified by ECMCC as M/WBE vendors qualified to provide the service or commodity.
- 3. <u>Other Media</u>. Advertisements for RFPs, IFBs and other solicitations anticipated to result in a State Contract will also be placed in minority and women-focused media as appropriate.
- **D. Documentation of Good Faith Efforts.** ECMCC shall document its Good Faith Efforts by including in the procurement record: (1) documentation showing M/WBE vendors, organizations and associations that were solicited and/or copies of advertisements placed in general circulation media, trade association, publications and/or minority-focused media, and (2) all bids, quotes, proposals or other responses received from M/WBE vendors.
- **E. Contractor's Good Faith Efforts.** When an opportunity for subcontracting or indirect expenditure with an M/WBE firm exists on a State Contract, ECMCC shall ensure that prime vendors employ a good faith effort to utilize M/WBE subcontractors as required under 5 NYCRR 142.8. In determining whether a Contractor has made good faith efforts to utilize M/WBE subcontractors, ECMCC shall consider, at a minimum, whether the Contractor has undertaken the following efforts:
  - 1. Solicit certified M/WBEs and provide copies of solicitations and responses thereto upon ECMCC's request;
  - 2. Advertise for participation of M/WBEs in in appropriate general circulation, trade and minority- or women-oriented publications, and provide copies of the listing(s) and date(s) of the publication to ECMCC upon request; and
  - 3. Undertake steps to reasonably structure the contract scope of work for the purpose of subcontracting with, or obtaining supplies from, certified M/WBEs.

#### F. Joint Ventures and Teaming Agreements.

Where a State Contract does not afford opportunities for subcontracting or subconsulting, potential contractors shall be encouraged to enter into joint ventures and teaming agreements with M/WBEs.

1. <u>Joint Venture</u>. A contractual agreement joining together two or more business enterprises, one of which is a certified M/WBE, for the purpose of performing on a State Contract. The M/WBE must provide a percentage of

value added services representing an equitable interest in the joint venture. All parties to the joint venture must agree to share in the profits and losses of the business endeavor according to their percentage of equitable interest.

- Teaming Agreement. A utilization plan arrangement between two or more business enterprises, one of which is a certified M/WBE, to perform on a specific State Contract if awarded to the team. The team itself may be a joint venture, or one of the team members may be designated to act as the prime contractor, and the other member(s) designated to act as subcontractors.
- 3. <u>Information Required.</u> In the event that a contractor responding to a solicitation is a joint venture, teaming agreement, or other similar arrangement that includes a certified M/WBE, such a contractor must submit the M/WBEs identifying information, including federal identification number and copy of certification, as well as a copy of the joint venture or teaming agreement.

#### G. M/WBE Utilization.

- M/WBE Utilization Plan. With respect to procurements that are anticipated to result in the execution of a State Contract, ECMCC shall include a blank M/WBE Utilization Plan with any IFB, RFP, or proposed contract (where the contract is exempt from competition requirements set forth in GML § 103).
- 2. Review of Utilization Plan. ECMCC shall review and approve all M/WBE documentation (Utilization Plan, Staffing Plan, etc.), or otherwise notify the potential contractor of disapproval or deficiency of the documentation within twenty (20) business days of submission, as required by 5 NYCRR §142.4. If the Utilization Plan is not approved, the M/WBE Program Coordinator will provide the contractor with a written notice of deficiency of the Utilization Plan within twenty (20) business days of its receipt, as required under 5 NYCRR Part 142.6(c). The potential contractor must respond to the notice of deficiency by submitting to the M/WBE Compliance Coordinator a written remedy within the period of time set forth in the bid-Bid or RFP documents, as permitted by 5 NYCRR Part 142.6(e). If the written remedy submitted is found to be inadequate, the M/WBE Compliance Coordinator will notify the contractor and may request the contractor to submit a request for a waiver. If a contractor is deemed non-responsive or non-responsible by ECMCC in accordance with Section any request for waiver shall be deemed to be moot (5 NYCRR Part 142.7(a)-(1)-(b)).
- 3. <u>Determination of Non-Responsiveness</u>. ECMCC may disqualify a potential contractor as non-responsive (5 NYCRR §142.6(f)) to the requirements of NYS Executive Law Article 15-A upon the occurrence of any of the following:
  - (i) Contractor fails to submit a M/WBE Utilization Plan in accordance with the requirements of this Policy or apply for a waiver;
  - (ii) Contractor fails to submit a written remedy in response to a notice of Utilization Plan deficiency in accordance with this Policy;

- (iii) Contractor fails to submit a request for waiver upon request by ECMCC:
- (iv) Denial of a request for waiver by the M/WBE Compliance Coordinator or the Division; or
- (v) M/WBE Compliance Coordinator determines that the contractor has failed to perform good faith efforts.
- H. Self-Performance. Contractors that are NYS certified M/WBEs and will self-perform all or a portion of a State Contract may count the value of the self-performed work as either MBE or WBE involvement up to the dollar value of such involvement. Contractor must also engage participation from another MBE or WBE firm of the opposite designation in order to meet the requirements of ECMCC's M/WBE Program. Example: On a contract for supplies with a 30% M/WBE goal (15% MBE and 15% WBE), ABC Company is a WBE and intends to self-perform 20% of the contract work. Company ABC may count 20% of the contract value as WBE utilization performed by Company ABC. Company ABC must still engage at least one NYS certified MBE as a subcontractor or supplier to perform at least 15% of the contract work in order to meet the M/WBE requirements of the contract.
- I. Commercially Useful Function. In accordance with 5 NYCRR 140.1(f), only sums paid to M/WBEs for the performance of a commercially useful function may be applied towards the achievement of the applicable M/WBE participation goal. An M/WBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. An M/WBE does not perform a commercially useful function if its role adds no substantive value and is limited to that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract, or project through which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of participation.
- J. Contractor Reporting. The State Contract shall require contractor to <u>report on their submit monthly</u> M/WBE utilization <u>reports</u> throughout the term of the Contract <u>in the format and timeline indicated by ECMCC</u>.
- **K. Non-Compliance.** Contractors who fail to comply with the utilization percentages set forth in their approved Utilization Plan shall be subject disqualification, liquidated damages, termination of the State Contract, or other enforcement as set forth in the Contract.
- L. Waivers. If a contractor or potential contractor, after engaging in good faith efforts as described within the M/WBE Regulations, is unable to achieve the M/WBE goals applicable to the RFP, IFB, or State Contract, ECMCC may permit the contractor to request a total or partial waiver of the M/WBE goals by submitting a request for waiver accompanied by documentation of good faith efforts. Within seven (7) business days of submissionthe timeframe set forth in the Bid or RFP documents, ECMCC will determine in its discretion whether the request should be approved, denied, or whether additional action should be taken by the contractor to reach the applicable goal. Contractors are responsible for preparation of all Requests for Waiver and supporting documentation, and waiver requests that do not contain sufficient documentation of Good Faith Efforts should not be approved.
- M. M/WBE Discretionary Purchases. Consistent with New York Public Authorities Law Section 2879, where goods or services are available from certified M/WBEs,

procurements may be made by ECMCC in amounts not exceeding \$500,000 without competitive biddingprocurement process, in accordance with the March 31, 2015November 26, 2019 resolution of the ECMCC Board of Directors (each a "Discretionary M/WBE Procurement"). ECMCC must document in the procurement record support for both the reasonableness of the price and the selection of the M/WBE vendor. Any contracts entered into as Discretionary M/WBE Procurements must include language providing for the termination of the agreement should the M/WBE lose its state certification.

1. <u>Solicitation of discretionary quotes</u>. When making a Discretionary Procurement, ECMCC may solicit quotes from multiple M/WBE vendors ("M/WBE Mini-Bid"). Generally, the Discretionary M/WBE Procurement should be awarded to the responsible M/WBE vendor submitting the lowest price.

#### 2. Advertisement of Discretionary M/WBE Procurements.

Advertising requirements under NYS Economic Development Law still apply to Discretionary M/WBE Procurements. The language that should be used for advertisement of a Discretionary M/WBE Procurement is as follows for M/WBE Mini-Bids (as described below):

"ECMCC intends to procure [insert project description, i.e. 1,000 widgets] pursuant to its discretionary purchasing authority under New York Public Authorities Law section 2879. This procurement opportunity is limited to New York State businesses certified pursuant to Article 15-A of the New York State Executive Law."

If this is <u>not</u> intended as an M/WBE Mini-Bid, the following language shall be used:

"ECMCC intends to procure [insert project description, e.g. 1,000 widgets] as a discretionary spend pursuant to its purchasing authority under New York Public Authorities Law section 2879. ECMCC will procure these services or goods from a New York State businesses certified pursuant to Article 15-A of the New York State Executive Law. This is not a bid opportunity. Please do not contact ECMCC requesting bid information."

- 3. <u>Negotiation of Procurement Price</u>. When an M/WBE submits a quote for a commodity or service in a Discretionary M/WBE Procurement (not exceeding \$500,000) and the quote is deemed high, ECMCC should engage in direct negotiation with the M/WBE vendor in an attempt to reach reasonableness of price. This step is not permitted for a competitive procurement.
- 4. Reasonableness of Price. ECMCC must document in the procurement record the "reasonableness of price" for any Discretionary M/WBE Procurement. Generally, reasonableness of price can be determined by: (1) Comparing the quoted price with the price for the same or similar services purchased within the last six months; (2) comparing the price with other quoted prices; (3) comparing the quoted price with prices in various procurement publications; (4) reviewing the type of work that was previously accepted by ECMCC at

- a similar price; or (5) comparing the price of the product or service with the current market value of the same product or service.
- 5. <u>Justification for the Selection of M/WBE Vendor</u>. ECMCC must document justification for the selection of the M/WBE vendor in the procurement record. Selection may be supported by: (1) demonstrating reasonableness of cost; (2) showing enhanced or best value provided by the vendor; (3) (if applicable) noting the vendor is a NYS small business; and (4) identifying the vendor as an M/WBE (this cannot be the sole justification).

#### N. Consideration of Diversity Practices.

- 1. Generally. ECMCC may consider potential contractors' "Diversity Practices" in awarding contracts in excess of \$250,000 that are not subject to formal competitive bidding, and are awarded on the basis of best value. With respect to such contracts awarded through the RFP process and anticipated to be in excess of \$250,000, prior to issuing the RFP, ECMCC shall determine whether it is practical, feasible and appropriate to include Diversity Practices in the evaluation. If ECMCC makes a determination that the evaluation of Diversity Practices is not practicable, feasible, or appropriate for service contracts, such determination shall be supported in writing in the procurement record.
- 2. <u>Diversity Practices</u>. A contractor's "diversity practices" are its past, present, and prospective practices and policies with respect to: (a) utilizing certified M/WBEs in contracts awarded by New York State agencies, other public entities or private sector companies, as subcontractors and suppliers; and (b) entering into partnerships, joint ventures or other similar arrangements with certified M/WBEs as defined in this part or other applicable federal, state, or local statutes or regulations, or certified by the certifying entities recognized by the Division governing an entity's utilization of minority or women-owned business enterprises, and (c) any other information requested by that demonstrates the contractor's commitment to a policy of diversity practices related to M/WBEs.
- 3. <u>Determination of Practicality or Feasibility</u>. A determination by ECMCC as to whether it is practical, feasible and appropriate to assess the diversity practices of all prime contractors making such submissions shall include consideration of the: (1) nature of the labor, services, supplies, equipment and materials being procured; (2) method of procurement undertaken to make the award; (3) certified M/WBE utilization plans required by ECMCC; and (4) availability of certified M/WBEs in the region in which the contract is to be performed.
- 4. <u>Diversity Practice Submissions</u>. Where ECMCC determines with respect to a particular contract that Diversity Practices will be considered in awarding the Contract, ECMCC shall require all potential contractors to complete and submit a Diversity Questionnaire and shall consider the potential contractors' Diversity Practices as a factor in making a determination regarding contract award.

**CMO Conference Room** 

#### **MINUTES**

**Credentials Committee Meeting February 3, 2022** 

Present: Dr. Yogesh Bakhai, Dr. Mandip Panesar, Richard Skomra, CRNA, Dr. Ashvin Tadakamalla, Dr. Brian Murray, Dr. Samuel Cloud, Dr. Richard Hall, Dr. Mark LiVecchi, Dr. Victor Vacanti, Dr. Robert Glover

Agenda Item	Discussion/Recommendation	Action	Follow-up
I. CALL TO ORDER	Dr. Bakhai called the meeting to order at		
	3:02 p.m.		
II. ADMINISTRATIVE			
A. Minutes	The minutes of the January 6th meeting were reviewed.	Motion made, all in favor, to approve as written.	Via these minutes, the actions of the Credentials Committee are submitted to the Medical Executive Committee for review and action.
B. Deceased	None	None	None
C. Applications Withdrawn/Processing Cessation	None	None	None
D. Automatic Conclusion (Initial Appointment)	None	None	None
E. Name Changes	None	None	None
F. Leave of Absence (5)	<ul> <li>Anesthesiology         <ul> <li>Heather Rizzo, CRNA- maternity; RTW 3/11/22</li> <li>Danielle Doherty, CRNA-maternity; RTW TBD</li> </ul> </li> <li>Family Medicine         <ul> <li>Azadeh Hassan-Tehrani, FNP-maternity; RTW 4/25/22</li> </ul> </li> <li>Plastic &amp; Reconstructive Surgery         <ul> <li>Alexis Santillo, PA-C- military; RTW 9/1/23</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	For informational purposes only	None necessary.

		<ul> <li>Abigail Green, MD- maternity; RTW 2/28/22</li> </ul>		AL JIS	
G. Resignations (9	-	s are updated and resignation protocol owed.		Notification via these minutes to MEC, Board of Directors, Revenue Management, Decision Support	
NAME	DEPARTMEN	PRACTICE PLAN/REASON	COVERING/COLLABORATING/ SUPERVISING	DATE	
Cheryl Spulecki, CRNA	Anesthesiology	<ul><li>ECMC</li><li>Was per diem</li><li>Confirmed in email</li></ul>	N/A	02/02/22	
Andrew Koroschetz, PA-C Emergency M		<ul> <li>UEMS</li> <li>Working at Wellnow</li> <li>Urgent care</li> <li>Confirmed in email</li> </ul>	N/A	01/24/22	
Lauren Weeks, PA-C	Emergency Medici	ne      UEMS     Left practice plan     Confirmed in email	N/A	10/1/21	
Jeong Min Kim, MD	Internal Medicine	<ul><li>UBMD</li><li>Leaving practice plan</li><li>Confirmed in email</li></ul>	N/A	02/28/22	
Rachel Samardak, PA-C	Internal Medicine	<ul><li>Apogee</li><li>Left Practice plan</li><li>Confirmed in email</li></ul>	N/A	01/19/22	
Benjamin Levy, MD Orthopaedic S			N/A	02/01/22	
Monica Slomba, PA-C Orthopaedic Surge			N/A	12/10/21	
Albert Thomas, MD	Psychiatry	<ul><li>UPP</li><li>Moved to California</li><li>Confirmed in email</li></ul>	N/A	08/31/21 Has not exercised privileges	

Alexandra Wesley, MD Radiology  III. CHANGE IN STAFF		<ul><li>GLMI</li><li>Left practice plan</li><li>Confirmed in email</li></ul>	N/A	11/05/21
A. Stephen Vukas,	DMD, MD <u>O</u>	<ul> <li>Change from Associate to Active</li> <li>Per Dr. Vukas, requires the change due to his position in the Dept. of Oral Surgery</li> <li>Covering Physician: Dr. Michael Markiewicz</li> <li>No change to privileges</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve with changes as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.
B. Aaron Hoffman, MD		<ul> <li>Change from Active to Courtesy,         Refer and Follow</li> <li>Per Dr. Hoffman, he does not come         to ECMC</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve with changes as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.
R		Adding Cardio/Thoracic Surgery     Collaborating Physician: Dr. Yaron     Perry (2 PA/4 NP)  equested privileges:     Level 1 core evel II- matches privileges currently held in SU (S&K)	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.

	B. Lucas Speak, NP	<ul> <li>Internal Medicine</li> <li>Adding Cardio/Thoracic Surgery</li> <li>Collaborating Physician: Dr. Yaron Perry (2 PA/5 NP)</li> <li>Requested privileges:         <ul> <li>Level 1 core</li> <li>Level II- matches privileges currently held in ICU (S&amp;K)</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve with privileges as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.
V.	CHANGE/ADDITION  Borating/Supervising			
Cona	iborating/ Super vising	None	None	None
VI.	PRIVILEGE ADDITION/ REVISION		-	-
	A. Nicole Scovazzo, PA-C	<ul> <li>Orthopaedic Surgery</li> <li>Added Aspiration/injection of joints</li> <li>Case logs submitted with request</li> <li>Temporary privileges granted for 01/24/2022</li> <li>Supervising Physician; Mark Anders, MD (4 PA)</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve with privileges as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.
VII.	PRIVILEGE WITHDRAWAL			
	A. Douglas Drumsta, MD	<ul> <li>Radiology</li> <li>Withdrawing Moderate sedation</li> <li>Withdrawing Angiography</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve change as requested.	Recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. Notification via these minutes to Revenue Management and Decision Support.
VIII.	UNACCREDITED FELLOWSHIPS	None	Informational Purposes Only	None Necessary

IX. INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (9)			
Casey Krug, PA-C Emergency Medicine	<ul> <li>D'Youville College Bachelor and Master of Science Physician Assistant December 2018</li> <li>Emergency Medicine Physician Assistant with UEMS at Buffalo General and WNY VA since March 2019. Joining ECMC in March 2022</li> <li>United States Army June 2010 to August 2014; Army National Guard Officer August 2014 to present</li> <li>NCCPA certified</li> <li>Supervising Physician – John Kruse, DO (4)</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Kylie Majka, PA-C Emergency Medicine	<ul> <li>Le Moyne College Master of Science Physician Assistant August 2021</li> <li>Emergency Medicine Physician Assistant with UEMS at Buffalo General since November 2021. Joining ECMC in March 2022</li> <li>NCCPA certified</li> <li>Supervising Physician – Dr. Alexandra Doane (3)</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Margaret Scherer, PA-C Family Medicine	<ul> <li>Daemen College Master of Science Physician Assistant May 2019</li> <li>General Physician, PC Orthopaedic Surgery Physician Assistant July 2019 to present; Family Medicine Post- Acute Care March 2022 at TerraceView</li> <li>NCCPA certified</li> <li>Supervising Physician – Dr. Ryan Mikac (3)</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Tracie Cotton, NP Internal Medicine	<ul> <li>Arizona State University Masters of Science Nursing May 2008</li> <li>Registered Nurse in Emergency Medicine, Operating Room and ICU</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive

Jillian Piniewski, NP	Stepdown November 2003 to October 2008  Cardiology Nurse Practitioner October 2008 to December 2015; Cardiovascular Nurse Practitioner November 2015 to present  Apogee Physicians travel team practitioner anticipated February 14, 2022  AANP certified Collaborating Physician – Dr. Ashvin Tadakamalla (18)  D'Youville College Master of Science	The Committee voted, all in favor,	Recommendation,
Orthopaedic Surgery	<ul> <li>Family Nurse Practitioner December 2020</li> <li>Registered Nurse with ECMC since 2017, transitioning to Orthopaedic NP February 1, 2022</li> <li>Temporary privileges granted February 1, 2022 for immediate patient need</li> <li>AANP certified</li> <li>Collaborating Physician – Dr. Christopher Mutty (1)</li> </ul>	to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Aimee Stanislawski, MD Psychiatry	<ul> <li>State University of New York at Buffalo MD June 2002</li> <li>University of Massachusetts Medical School Adult Psychiatry Residency July 2002 to June 2006</li> <li>Staff Psychiatrist; UMass Memorial Medical Center May 2005 to June 2006, ECMC October 2009 to August 2013, and VA Western New York June 2006 to May 2017</li> <li>Tele-psychiatrist VA Medical Center Bath New York May 2017 to present</li> <li>Joining UPP in March 2022 for CPEP</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.

	<ul> <li>American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology certified</li> </ul>		
Josephine Finazzo, DO Radiology – Teleradiology	<ul> <li>Kirksville College of Osteopathic Medicine DO June 1993</li> <li>Riverside Osteopathic Hospital Internal Medicine Internship July 1993 to June 1994</li> <li>Michigan State University College of Osteopathic Medicine Diagnostic Radiology Residency July 1994 to June 1998</li> <li>Emory University School of Medicine Body MRI Fellowship September 2017 to August 2018</li> <li>Established Teleradiologist since September 2018</li> <li>Joining Great Lakes Medical Imaging, LLC to provide Teleradiology services</li> <li>American Osteopathic Board of Radiology certified</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Jeffrey Hare, MD Radiology – Teleradiology	<ul> <li>Temple University MD May 1989</li> <li>University of Pennsylvania Internal Medicine Internship June 1989 to June 1990</li> <li>Temple University Hospital Diagnostic Radiology Residency July 1990 to June 1994</li> <li>Established Teleradiologist since June 1994</li> <li>Joined Virtual Radiologic Professional, LLC in May 2021 to current</li> <li>American Board of Radiology certified</li> </ul>	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical Executive Committee for approval.
Chelsea Giaraffa, PA-C Surgery	Chatham University Master of     Physician Assistant Studies July 2018	The Committee voted, all in favor, to approve the appointment with privileges granted as requested.	Recommendation, via these minutes, to the Medical

X. TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES	<ul> <li>Physician Assistant – Windsong Health Medical Alliance, PLLC Breast Surgery PA October 2018 to present and Windsong Radiology Group, PC PA October 2020 to present</li> <li>NCCPA certified</li> <li>Supervising Physician(s) – Dr. Marielle Ferstenberg-Osypian (1) and Dr. Michael Peyser (1)</li> <li>Laszlo Mechtler, MD Neurology January 6, 2022 (1 day temps)</li> <li>Sikandar Khan, MD Surgery January 7, 2022</li> <li>Duncan Johnstone, MD Internal Medicine January 17, 2022</li> <li>Nicole Scovazzo, PA-C Orthopaedic Surgery January 24, 2022</li> <li>John Moriarty, DPM Orthopaedic Surgery February 1, 2022</li> <li>Jillian Piniewski, FNP Orthopaedic Surgery February 1, 2022</li> </ul>			For informational purposes.		Executive Committee for approval.  None necessary.	
XI. REAPPOINTMENTS (31)		See reappointn	nent summary (Ai	ttachment B)	to reco	mmittee voted, all in favor, mmend approval of the re- ments listed with es as requested.	Via these minutes, recommendation to Medical Executive Committee for approval.
	DED	A DTA AFAIT	CATECORY	OPPE		DDIV/U.F.	CFC
NAME Snodgrass, Darress CRNA	Anesthes	ARTMENT ia	CATEGORY AHP	UPPE		PRIVILE	UES
Kapral, Elizabeth DDS  Control of the control of th			Active			Adding 1 New Privilege: La	ser ablation/surgery
Busse, Donald PA Supervising: Dr. Bart  Emergen		cy Medicine					
Holmes, David MD Family N			Active				
Malik, Sarah MD	edicine	Active			Withdrawing 1 Privilege: A Privileges. Adding 3 New F management of Substance	Privileges: Basic	

			Management of Substance and Methadone maintenance.
Schaeffer, Christopher MD	Family Medicine	Active	maintenance.
•			
Singh, Ranjit MD	Family Medicine	Active	
Addagatla, Sujatha MD	Internal Medicine	C, R, F	
Curtis, Anne MD	Internal Medicine	C, R, F	
Farry, James MD	Internal Medicine	Active	
Krtanjek, Kristina FNP Collaborating: Dr. Tadakamalla	Internal Medicine	АНР	
Maloney, Michael PA Supervising: Dr. Tadakamalla	Internal Medicine	AHP	
Orlick, Arthur MD	Internal Medicine	Active	Adding 1 New Privilege: Admitting Privileges
Pszonak, Robert MD	Internal Medicine	Active	
Robb, Melissa FNP Collaborating: Dr. Tadakamalla	Internal Medicine	АНР	
Sporski, Sarah FNP Collaborating: Dr. Anillo and Dr. Perry	Internal Medicine Thoracic/Cardiovascular Surgery	АНР	Adding 5 New Privileges in IM: Gastric Lavage, Subclavian Puncture, Tracheostomy Tube Replacement, Intraosseous Vascular Access, Chest Tube placement and removal.
Binkley, Matthew MD	Orthopaedic Surgery	Active	Adding 1 New Privilege: OR Assist
Callahan, John MD	Orthopaedic Surgery	Active	
Gill, Elise PA Supervising: Dr. Anders	Orthopaedic Surgery	AHP	
Keitz, Allison PA Supervising: Dr. Binkley	Orthopaedic Surgery	AHP	
Rohrbacher, Bernhard MD	Orthopaedic Surgery	Active	
Nakhla, Hassan MD	Pathology	Active	
Boggiano, William MD	Psychiatry and Behavioral Medicine	Active	
Frank, Tawni MD	Psychiatry and Behavioral Medicine	Active	
Joseph, Brian MD	Psychiatry and Behavioral Medicine	C, R, F	
Lucaj, Elizabeth MD	Psychiatry and Behavioral Medicine	Active	Adding 1 New Privilege: Suboxone treatment
Engbretson, Jon MD	Radiology - Teleradiology	Active	Withdrawing 1 privilege: Neuroradiology

		ology - Aradiology	Active		Withdrawi	ng 1 privilege: Neurora	ndiology
Chopko, Michael MD Surg		ery A	Active				
Kordasiewicz, Lynn ANP Surg		ery	AHP				
Collaborating: Dr. Flynn							
Greco, Joseph MD Uro		ogy A	Active				
XII. AUTOMATIC CONCLUSIO	N						
		Reappointment Expirat	tion				
1 <sup>st</sup> Notice		NONE				For informational	None
						purposes.	necessary.
2 <sup>nd</sup> Notice		NONE				For informational	None
						purposes.	necessary.
3 <sup>rd</sup> Notice		NONE			For informational	None	
						purposes.	necessary.
XIII. PROFESSIONAL PRACTIC	E	FPPE				All reviewed by the	Continue to
EVALUATIONS		lanuary			<u>-</u>		monitor.
		January			_	No FPPE for cause	
		Departments		# completed		identified.	
		Emergency Medicin	e	<u> </u>	_		
		Family Medicine		1			
		Psychiatry		1			
		Teleradiology		2			
		Surgery		1			
		Jurgery		1			
			T - 1 - 1	6	I		
			Total	6			
		Total # Left Open		1	_		
		Total # Closed		5	_		

	OPPE  Department  CRNA's OB/GYN Otolaryngol ogy Cardiothora cic Surgery Oral- Maxillofacia I Surgery	Total number of Providers  29 4 3 23	# of Providers who met all measures  29 4 3 23	# of Providers who did not meet one or more measures  0 0 0 0	# of Providers who did not provide supplement al data  0 0 0 0	Was Action Taken by the Chief of Service if Necessary ? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes		
XIV. OLD BUSINESS								
A. Expirables	• All u	pdated and	l current				For informational	None
·							purposes.	necessary.
B. DEA, License, Boards	All updated for January 2022				For informational purposes.	None necessary.		
C. Inspire privilege	Dr. Loree and Dr. Belles agree on the following:				The Committee	None		
	At Initial Request: The provider will complete DISE (manufacturer) training and be on the list of approved providers. The first case will be				approved the request. Criteria	necessary.		
	done under the supervision of the Chief of Service or designate.				will be added to			
	If the provider holds the privilege at another facility, he/she				the appropriate			
		needs to provide documentation of 5 successful procedures.				privilege forms.		
XIIV. NEW BUSINESS								

A. DOD Providers	Per Charlene Ludlow's request, 3 Hospitalists have been	For informational	None
	granted an extension until March 8, 2022	purposes.	necessary.
B. Primary Palliative Care	Adding Palliative Care privileges in the Department of Surgery	Cheryl Carpenter	Follow up will
Privileges	Presented to the Committee were initial draft criteria to add Primary	will take the	be presented
	Palliative Care privileges within the Department of Surgery. Dr. Grimm	suggestions to Dr.	at the March
	and the Palliative Care team would like the Committee to consider	Flynn and Dr.	Credentials
	adding a Primary Palliative Care pathway for other specialties, such as	Grimm.	Committee for
	Surgery (as supported by the ACS TQIP program) as well as in areas such as the ED, MICU, Medicine H.		review
	An example of specific criteria was presented. They include learning		
	modules from CAPC and the ACS, CME/CEU recommendations as well		
	as in-person training working with the current Palliative Care Team.		
	The Committee endorsed the idea, adding that a specific curriculum		
	could be developed based on the applicant's experience and training.		
	As applicants present with different levels of experience, the Director		
	of Palliative care would sign off on curriculum requirements and		
	oversight.		
B. Robotic Surgery Privileges	The Committee was presented with criteria supporting three pathways	Meeting to be	Follow up will
	to be privileges in Robotic assisted surgery. Included in the initial	held: Dr. Murray,	be presented
	credentialing were the Departments of Surgery (Bariatric, Colon-rectal,	Dr. Flynn, Dr.	at the March
	General), Urology, Cardio-thoracic. The three pathways included	Chevli, Dr. Perry,	Credentials
	recommendations for physicians already holding the privilege at	Cheryl Carpenter.	Committee for
	another facility, residency or fellowship trained surgeons as well as		review
	surgeons who have not yet trained in robotic assisted procedures.		
	These pathways have been discussed individually with the Chiefs of		
	Service. The Committee would like a consensus of the Chiefs of Service		
	who would be utilizing the technology. The Chiefs of Service and the		
	Committee do agree on the criteria for those experienced console		
	surgeons who have privileges at other facilities. That includes a letter		
	from the Chief of Service at the current facility speaking to the		
	competence of the surgeon as well as case logs demonstrating at least		
	12 procedures with good outcomes in the past year.		

C. Booster vaccination	COEM ran NYSIIS and found 616 out of 901 with Booster dates	For informational	None
		purposes.	necessary.
D. Annual dues sent out	<ul> <li>Annual dues were sent out the end of January. A big thank you</li> </ul>	For informational	None
	to Judy and Barb who handled the mailing	purposes.	necessary.
XIIIV. ADJOURNMENT	The meeting was adjourned at 4:20 p.m.		

Respectfully submitted,

gréatha

Yogesh Bakhai, MD Chair, Credentials Committee

### **CMO** Memorandum

To: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CC: MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

From: BRIAN M. MURRAY, MD, CMO

Date: February 14, 2022

Re: APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS CHIEF OF SERVICE AND ASSOCIATE CHIEF OF SERVICE

#### APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF OF SERVICE AND ASSOCIATE CHIEF OF SERVICE

Each Chief of Service shall be and remain physician members in good standing of the Active Staff, shall have demonstrated ability in at least one of the clinical areas covered by the department, and shall be willing and able to faithfully discharge the functions of his/her office. Each Chief of Service shall be certified by an appropriate specialty board, or affirmatively establish comparable competence through the credentialing process.

- 1. **Appointment:** Each Chief of Service and Associate Chief of Service shall be appointed by the Board for a one to three (1-3) year term.
- 2. **Term of Office:** The Chief of Service and Associate Chief of Service shall serve the appointment term defined by the Board and be eligible to succeed himself.
- 3. **Removal:** Removal of a Chief of Service from office may be made by the Board acting upon its own recommendation or a petition signed by fifty percent (50%) of the Active department members with ratification by the Medical Executive Committee and the Board as outlined in Section 4.1.6 for Removal of Medical Staff Officers within the Medical/Dental Staff Bylaws.
- 4. **Vacancy:** Upon a vacancy in the office of Chief of Service, the Associate or Assistant Director, or division chief of the department shall become Chief of Service or other such practitioner named by the Board until a successor is named by the Board.

The following physician members are currently members in good standing of our Active Medical/Dental Staff and are being recommended for the position of Chief of Service within their departments:

DEPARTMENT	NAME	TERM	APPT	REVIEW DATE
Anesthesiology	Anthony DePlato, MD	1 YR	SEPT 2020	DEC 2025
Cardiothoracic Surgery	Yaron Perry, MD	1 YR	NOV 2021	DEC 2022
Dentistry	Maureen Sullivan-Nasca, DDS	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Dermatology	VACANT	3 YRS		
Emergency Medicine	Michael Manka, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Family Medicine	Andrea Manyon, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Internal Medicine	Joseph Izzo, Jr., MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Laboratory Medicine	Keith Krabill, MD	1 YR	JUN 2021	DEC 2025
Neurology	Richard Ferguson, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Neurosurgery	Richard Spiro, MD	1 YRS	NOV 2020	DEC 2025
Obstetrics & Gynecology	Suzanne Griffith, MD	1 YR	DEC 2020	DEC 2025
Ophthalmology	Sandra Sieminski, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery	Richard Hall, DDS, PhD, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Orthopaedic Surgery	Philip Stegemann, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Otolaryngology	William Belles, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Pathology	Yousef Soofi, MD	1 YR	MAR 2022	DEC 2022
Plastics & Reconstructive Surgery	Thom Loree, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023

DEPARTMENT	NAME	TERM	APPT	REVIEW DATE
Psychiatry	Yogesh Bakhai, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Radiology	Douglas Drumsta, MD	1 YR	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Rehabilitation Medicine	Mark LiVecchi, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Surgery	William Flynn. MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023
Urology	Kent Chevli, MD	3 YRS	JAN 2020	DEC 2023

The following physician members are currently members in good standing of our Active Medical/Dental Staff and are being recommended for the position of ASSOCIATE Chief of Service within their departments:

DEPARTMENT	NAME	TERM	APPT
Anesthesia	Thomas LoStracco, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Chemical Dependency	Mohammadreza Azadfard, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Dentistry	VACANT	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Emergency Services	Jennifer Pugh, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Family Medicine	David Holmes, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Internal Medicine	Sergio Anillo, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Internal Medicine	Ashvin Tadakamalla, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Internal Medicine, Specialty Med.	Ellen Rich, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Psychiatry	Dori Marshall, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Radiology	Thomas LoStracco, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE
Urology	John Bodkin, III, MD	1	BY CHIEF OF SERVICE